
Call to Order

Meeting Minutes

1. Approval of the minutes from the Head Start Policy Council meeting on March 26, 2024.

Public Comments

Briefing and Possible Action on the following items

2. Approval of Head Start and Early Head Start (EHS) Policy Updates
3. Review of Head Start and Early Head Start (EHS) Program Wellness Services
4. Review of Head Start, EHS, and Early Head StartChild Care Partnership (EHSCCP) Fiscal

Report
5. Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHSCCP Monthly Program Report
6. Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report
7. Review of EHS and EHSCCP Quality Assurance Report

Adjournment



Approval  of 
Head Start Policy Council 
March 26, 2024 Meeting 

Minutes



MEETING MINUTES 



 

HEAD START POLICY COUNCIL MEETING 

March 26, 2024 

6:15 P.M.  

Members Present  Edgewood Independent School District (EISD):  Jessica Garcia, Jasmine Gomez 
San Antonio Independent School District (SAISD): Keyonna Hughes, Jacqueline Munoz, 
Lillian Dotson, Ashley Trevino 
EHS-EISD:  none 
EHS-EISD HB: Erika Lara 
EHS-CCP: Anna Rios 
Community Representative: Yenter Tu 
 

Members Absent  Edgewood Independent School District (EISD): none 
San Antonio Independent School District (SAISD): none 
EHS EISD: Wilmarys Vazquez 
EHS-EISD HB: none 
EHS-CCP: Krizia Franklin 
Community Representative: Ramiro Lopez 
 

Alternate Members 
Present 

Edgewood Independent School District (EISD): None 
San Antonio Independent School District (SAISD): None 
EHS-EISD:  none 
EHS-EISD HB: none 
EHS-CCP:   None 
Community Representative: John Bonillas, Lisa Rosales 
 

Alternate Members 
Absent 

Edgewood Independent School District (EISD): Erika Fuentes, Katherine Carvallo 
San Antonio Independent School District (SAISD): Monica Duran, Magaly Olguin, Alyssa 
Medina 
EHS-EISD: none 
EHS-EISD HB: Elena Martinez Blanco 
EHS-CCP: Claudia Zuniga, Kanisha Thomas 
Community Representative: none 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

2023-2024 San Antonio Independent School District (SAISD) HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, called the 

meeting to order at 6:16 p.m.   

 

II. MEETING MINUTES 

    Motion: Ms. Keyonna Hughes moved to approve the February 27, 2024 meeting minutes. 

     Seconded (2nd): Ms. Jessica Garcia 

     Vote: All in favor (unanimous)- The motion carried.  

  

III.PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 None to report 



 2 

 

IV. BRIEFING AND POSSIBLE ACTION (a-h)  

 

a. Approval of 2024-2025 Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) Baseline Grant 

Application    

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Ms. Rhonda Roach, Senior Special Projects Manager, to 

present on the Approval of the 2024-2025 Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) Baseline 

Grant Application. Ms. Roach highlighted the different components of the Baseline Grant Application 

that included providing information from the 2023-2024 program year operations and detailed 

planned services and improvements for the next five-year grant cycle. Ms. Roach also reported that 

the EHS-CCP program will continue providing program services in six non-profit agencies.  Detailed 

funding information from the Baseline Grant Application was also provided. 

 

HSPC member, John Bonillas, inquired and requested clarification about the term, non-compete, and 

asked if that was a good thing. Ms. Roach explained that we are awarded on a five-year project period 

and during those five years we go through our Federal monitoring cycle and based on the outcomes 

of the Federal monitoring cycle determines whether you have to compete or go through a non-

compete.  When it is a non-compete, that means it is a very favorable monitoring.  Ms. Roach 

confirmed that this makes the process easier to get the grant and added that this also means that no 

one else can write to compete for these funds. No further questions were asked. 

 

Motion: Ms. Jasmine Gomez moved to approve the 2024-2025 Early Head Start-Child Care 

Partnership (EHS-CCP) Baseline Grant Application with minor edits. 

Seconded (2nd): Mr. John Bonillas 

Vote: All in favor (unanimous) 

 

b. Approval of 2022-2023 Annual Report with minor revisions    

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Ms. Priscilla Garcia, Senior Management Analyst, to 

present on the Approval of the 2022-2023 Annual Report with minor revisions. Ms. Garcia highlighted 

several pages of the Annual Report, including our 2022-2023 Head Start Policy Council representatives 

and City of San Antonio Head Start staff photo. Ms. Garcia reported that all six of our Early Head Start-

Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) program sites had received a four (4) star rating system from the 

Texas Rising Star Program. In addition, Ms. Garcia highlighted data on services provided that included 

dental evaluations, lead screenings, and mental health consultations. No questions were asked. 

 

Motion: Ms. Anna Rios moved to approve the 2022-2023 Annual Report with minor edits. 

Seconded (2nd): Ms. Jessica Garcia 

Vote: All in favor (unanimous) 

 

c. Review of Head Start Program Governance By-laws and Impasse Procedures 

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Ms. Priscilla Garcia, Senior Management Analyst, to 

present the Review of the Head Start Program Governance By-laws and Impasse Procedures.  Ms. 

Garcia referred the Policy Council members to the parent packet to review the documents and 

opened the floor for discussion, questions or comments.  In addition, Ms. Garcia stated no changes 

were being made at this time. No questions or comments were provided. 



 3 

 

d. Review of Head Start/Early Head Start Program Disability Enrollment Data 

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Ms. Mica Clark-Peterek, Special Projects Manager, and 

Ms. Christina Fitzgerald, Special Projects Manager, to present the Review of the Head Start/Early 

Head Start Program Disability Enrollment Data.  Ms. Clark-Peterek informed that each Head Start 

grant must include a minimum of 10% of slots to be occupied by a child with a disability. This 

requirement helps ensure that programs recruit children who are identified as eligible for the 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) services prior to entering the program. Eligibility for 

Special Education Services was discussed.  Ms. Clark-Peterek also informed that reports are provided 

to the Policy Council members each month of the number of children that are identified as having a 

disability and are receiving services through IDEA. As of September 2023, the program, as a whole, 

met the 10% requirement. Furthermore, the percentages obtained are based on the program’s 

funded enrollment. In conclusion, Head Start’s goal is to receive services as early as possible, serve 

children and families of greatest need, and engage and empower parents to advocate for their child.   

 

HSPC member, Yenter Tu, inquired about how families are presented with resources for disability 

services. Ms. Clark-Peterek informed about the partnerships with practitioners and Early Childhood 

Intervention (ECI) services. When a doctor identifies or suspects a child may have a disability or may 

need additional services, they will refer the child to ECI services. With that partnership with ECI, they 

know about our Early Head Start locations and will communicate with us that they have a child that 

would like to enroll into the program. If Head Start identifies a child with a suspected delay, parents 

are referred to talk with their doctor. The Early Head Start program may also make a referral to ECI 

and will work with them to come in and complete an evaluation. 

 

HSPC member, Jasmine Gomez, inquired if the 10% disability enrollment was inclusive of the 

individuals who might have a delay or special need. Ms. Clark-Peterek reported that this percentage 

included children that had an Individual Service Plan (IFSP) or an Individualized Education Plan (IEP).  

 

HSPC member, Jessica Garcia, inquired about assessments for autism and asked that if a child came 

in with autism, would that child have to be re-tested. Ms. Clark-Peterek informed that the child 

would go through an evaluation process with the school district to see if the child qualified for 

services. Ms. Clark-Peterek added that sometimes, a child may not qualify for services under IDEA 

but they may qualify for services or accommodations under Section 504. Ms. Clark-Peterek provided 

detailed information regarding Section 504 services. No further questions were asked. 

 

e. Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Fiscal Report 

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Mr. Stephen Gonzalez, Fiscal Manager, to present the 

Review of the Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Fiscal Reports.  Mr. Gonzalez reported on the Head Start 

and Early Head Start consolidated grant for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. This grant period is from 

February 1, 2023 through January 31, 2024 and is currently in a close-out period. As of February 29, 

2024, Mr. Gonzalez reported the total budget was at $37,810,619.00.  The year-to-date budget was 

$34,834,991.00 and the year-to-date actual was $31,155,615.00 with a variance of $3,679,376.00.  

Mr. Gonzalez provided detailed information on variances related to Personnel Salaries/Fringe 

Benefits, Travel, Supplies, Contractual, Other, and Non Federal/In Kind categories. 

 



 4 

Mr. Gonzalez reported on the Head Start and Early Head Start consolidated grant for the 2024-2025 

fiscal year. This grant period is from February 1, 2024 through January 31, 2025. As of February 29, 

2024, Mr. Gonzalez reported the total budget was at $38,429,045.00.  Mr. Gonzalez also provided 

additional grant information and informed that the total Federal Budget was $30,743,236.00 and the 

Non Federal/In Kind amount was $7,685,809 which was an increase from the 2023-2024 grant year. 

The year-to-date budget was reported at $691,269.00 and the year-to-date actual was $654,829.00 

with a variance of $36,440.00.  Mr. Gonzalez provided detailed information on variances related to 

Travel, Supplies, Contractual, and Other categories. 

 

Lastly, Mr. Gonzalez reported on the Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) Grant.  The 

following information was provided from the 2023-2024 Fiscal Report as of February 29, 2024.  The 

budget period for this grant is from August 1, 2023 through July 31, 2024.  Mr. Gonzalez reported the 

total budget for this grant was $4,139,106.00.  The Year-to-date budget is $2,058,575.00 and the 

Year-to-date Actual amount is $2,072,070.00 with a negative variance amount of $13,496.00. Mr. 

Gonzalez provided variance explanations for Personnel Services and Fringe Benefits. 

 

HSPC member, Jasmine Gomez, inquired about the delay that was mentioned in the overview of the 

Head Start/Early Head Start 2023-2024 Fiscal Report. Mr. Gonzalez reported that for EISD and SAISD, 

there was a slight delay in receiving invoices from the school districts.  Mr. Gonzalez further reported 

that when invoices are received from our third party partners, they have to be fully approved by our 

internal staff and the finance staff before paying them out. Invoices were received at the end of 

February but they did not make the cut to include them for the month of February 2024 and so they 

will be recognized in March 2024. 

 

HSPC member, John Bonillas, inquired about the reallocation of $450,000.00 from “Personnel to 

Supplies and “Other” from the 2023-2024 Head Start/Early Head Start Fiscal Report. Mr. Gonzalez 

discussed SAISD’s teacher vacancies along with related payroll issues and the reallocation of funds to 

the purchase of supplies and minor building repairs. Mr. Gonzalez also provided clarification on the 

contractual services category and the carry forward process for left over funding. Ms. Audrey 

Jackson, Head Start Administrator, provided additional information on the teacher vacancies and the 

use of long-term substitute teachers in the classrooms. No further questions were asked. 

 

f.   Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Monthly Reports 

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Ms. Audrey Jackson, Head Start Administrator, to 

present the Review of Head Start, EHS, and EHS-CCP Monthly Reports.  Firstly, Ms. Jackson provided 

an introduction of Mr. Rodolfo Rodriguez, new lead staff member for quality assurance, budgets and 

contracts.  Then, Ms. Jackson presented on the monthly program reports that covered information 

through the end of February 2024. Regarding the Head Start Monthly Report, Ms. Jackson reported 

that we were at 95% for enrollment and referred the Policy Council members to the eligibility 

determinations and their percentages on the Head Start monthly report.  Attendance was reported 

at 90% and our disability enrollment was at 15.86% which exceeded our policy requirement of at 

least 10%. Ms. Jackson also reported on the benchmark dates for education and family engagement 

services, as well as the data on Mental Health Services.   

 



 5 

Ms. Jackson reported on the Early Head Start monthly report for February 2024 and stated that this 

program was housed at EISD with the center based and home based programs. Ms. Jackson reported  

this was the program in which we have struggled with teacher vacancies and added that we were at 

91% for enrollment. Information was provided about two vacant classrooms due to staff shortages 

and that one of those classrooms was now filled, as of February 2024. Also, Ms. Jackson informed 

that our Home based caseload had a funded enrollment of 12 slots and we currently have ten (10) 

children enrolled for the month of February, 2024 plus two children have now been added and we 

are now at 12 children with this program. Ms. Jackson projected that by the end of March or April, 

we will be 100% enrolled in the home based program. Our average daily attendance was reported at 

88% and our disability enrollment was at 12%. Ms. Jackson also highlighted the data in Education 

services.   

 

Lastly, Ms. Jackson reported on the February 2024 Monthly Program Report for the EHS-CCP 

program. Ms. Jackson reported this program serves 216 children and partners with six (6) different 

childcare providers. Ms. Jackson added that we are at 100% for enrollment and we have a long 

waiting list for this program. Our average daily attendance was at 91% for the month of February 

and our disability enrollment was at six percent (6%).  We did hit the 10% requirement for disability 

enrollment in August and now the number is going down because the children are aging out of ECI 

services and their Individual Family Service Plan (IFSP).  The children are then referred to ChildFind at 

the school districts if they are still in need of continued services. They will then be evaluated and 

then moved on to the Head Start program with or without an IEP.  Furthermore, Ms. Jackson 

reviewed the percentages for Education, Family Engagement, and Mental Health Services.  

 

HSPC member, Jasmine Gomez, inquired about the zero percent (0%) disability enrollment for the 

Home Based program. Ms. Rachel Pearce, Senior Management Analyst, reported that we do not 

have any children that have been identified with any type of disabilities or any concerns. It was 

reported that the home visitor works with the families to have conversations and address any 

concerns and send referrals, if needed.  The funded enrollment for the homebased program is 12 

slots and we continue to do recruitment for this program. Ms. Christina Fitzgerald, Special Projects 

Manager, reported that we continue to work with Early Childhood Intervention (ECI).  We meet with 

their coordinators and provide our information to their case managers so that families may be 

informed about our home based services. 

 

HSPC member, Ashley Trevino, requested additional information about Early Childhood Intervention 

(ECI). Ms. Fitzgerald reported that we partner with three agencies in San Antonio:  Brighton, Easter 

Seals and Center for Healthcare Services and all three offer ECI services. With parent consent, if 

there is a concern, the parent can have their child evaluated.  At a young age, it’s not necessarily a 

diagnosis, but perhaps there may be a developmental delay and intervention services could be 

offered.  In addition, services include speech, physical therapy, occupational therapy, and some 

counseling services. Services can be provided in the home or at the center.  The age group for these 

services is three years old or younger. Furthermore, a discussion was also held about partnerships 

with the medical community and connections with the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for 

Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) and our local libraries. No further questions were asked. 

 

 



 6 

g.   Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report 

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Ms. Samantha Villa, Management Analyst, to present 

the Review of the Head Start Quality Assurance Report.  Ms. Villa introduced herself and explained 

that she would be presenting the February 2024 monthly quality assurance report. It was reported 

that the projects conducted included a Governance Review, Safe Environments Review #1 Facilities, 

and Education Review.  Ms. Villa also informed about the projects that were completed, which 

included the Pedestrian Bus Safety Training Review, Safe Environments Review #1 Medication 

Administration, Safe Environments Review #1 Outdoors/Gym, and Safe Environments Review #1 

Classroom Safety.  Furthermore, Ms. Pizano reported there were no areas of non-compliance and  

discussed the areas of concern with the Pedestrian Bus Safety Training Review, Safe Environments 

Review #1 Medication Administration, Safe Environments Review #1 Outdoors/Gym, and Safe 

Environments Review #1 Classroom Safety. 

 

HSPC member, Ashley Trevino, inquired about the time frame that is given to the school districts to 

resolve any areas of concern. Ms. Audrey Jackson, Head Start Administrator, reported that, typically, 

there is a ten day turnaround period, however, there are some things that might take longer. In 

addition, we have had more success with both school districts in responding to issues than in the 

past. If something takes a long time, it could be that the administrator has not submitted the work 

order yet because the maintenance crew has been extremely responsive to requests.  Another 

component is that, because of the district’s rightsizing, this may also contribute to the fact that they 

have other things that are being looked at facility-wise. In general, Ms. Jackson reported, we have 

not had any problems with non-responsiveness. Ms. Mica Clark-Peterek, Special Projects Manager, 

discussed items having some priority, like items with immediate safety concerns and how those 

items are addressed. A discussion was also held on the complaint procedure that is available to 

parents with concerns. 

 

HSPC member, Jasmine Gomez, inquired about the frequency of follow-ups on concerns. Ms. Villa 

reported we have a quality assurance calendar and different areas are reviewed throughout the 

year. After visits are completed, reports are submitted to Head Start and the school districts. Items 

receive continuous follow-ups until they are addressed and corrected. Ms. Clark-Peterek reported 

both of our school district partners have a compliance team and photos are submitted to them. So, 

as Head Start’s compliance team makes their school visits, the reports are submitted to the school 

district’s compliance team and they go out and fix the items.  The school district’s compliance team 

submits evidence that items have been completed and our compliance team ensures that 

information is valid and that the correction is accepted. No further questions were asked.  

 

h.   Review of EHS and EHS-CCP Quality Assurance Report 

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, introduced Ms. Dianne Mendez, Management Analyst, to present 

the Review of EHS and EHS-CCP Quality Assurance Report. Ms. Mendez reported that she was 

presenting information from the February 2024 monthly quality assurance report. The Policy Council 

members were informed that the projects conducted included a Disabilities Child File Review and 

Onsite Visits, Family and Community Support Child File Review, and Mid-Year Health and Safety 

Screening Visits. There were noted areas of non-compliance with the Mid-Year Health and Safety 

Screening Visit and, in addition, Ms. Mendez also discussed the areas of concern related to the 



 7 

Disability Review, Family and Community Support Review and Mid-Year Health and Safety Screening 

Visit. 

 

HSPC member, Lisa Rosales, inquired about possible automation of systems to eliminate any possible 

human error in the uploading of forms from managers. Ms. Mendez provided information on the 

process of doing a Human Resources (HR) file review and a desk review which involves the Head 

Start system.  

 

HSPC member, Jasmine Gomez, stated that Ms. Rosales was possibly alluding to eliminating the need 

for a hard copy, in general, and allowing the parent to submit information electronically to avoid the 

gap in scanning the documents. Ms. Clark-Peterek provided information on a direct link that parents 

can use to upload documents into the ChildPlus data system and explained that there were other 

documents like WIC and the Supplemental Nutrition Program (SNAP) forms that have to be received 

from the parent. Ms. Clark-Peterek also reported that our ChildPlus data system does not 

communicate with other systems.  Ms. Cassandra Farias-Ybarra, Special Projects Manager, reported 

on the ChildPlus module system and information was also provided on confidentiality and the Health 

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA).  

 

V. GOVERNING BODY 

HSPC Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, asked Ms. Priscilla Garcia, Senior Management Analyst, to present 

items for the Governing Body and Advisory Committee. Ms. Garcia highlighted a photo of the City of 

San Antonio City Council (City Council) as the program’s Governing Board.  Ms. Garcia reported that 

City Council will not meet on Thursday, March 28, 2024 and added that the EHS-CCP Baseline Grant 

Application will be taken to City Council on April 11, 2024. 

 

A picture of the Community Action Advisory Board (CAAB) was presented, our current advisory 

committee that meets monthly. Ms. Garcia reported that the committee met on March 21, 2024 

and was provided with our program governance training. An announcement was also provided 

about a recruitment meeting in April for Policy Council parents and Parent Leaders from Head Start. 

Policy Council Community Representatives were encouraged to email any recruitment ideas. Policy 

Council members were informed that the next Policy Council meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, 

April 23, 2024. No questions were asked. 

 

VI.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion: Mr. John Bonillas moved to adjourn the meeting. 

Seconded (2nd): Ms. Jasmine Gomez 

Vote:  All in favor (unanimous) – The motion carried. 

 

HSPC member for Vice Chair, Ashley Trevino, adjourned the meeting at 7:59 pm. 

 

 

________________________________  _________________ 

                           Chair                   Date 

 



Approval of 
Head Start and Early Head 
Start (EHS) Policy Updates



Head Start



 



13  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 1 

SUBJECT Home Visits/Parent Conferences 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 6/23/2015 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/25/21 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/27/21 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 

 
Head Start teachers must complete two Home Visits and two Parent/Teacher Conferences each 
school year. 

 
Education Service Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure the completion 
dates of the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences are entered into ChildPlus and meet the 
City of the San Antonio Benchmark Due Date Guide, ChildPlus File Scan Order and Process Guide, 
and applicable ChildPlus Data Entry Guide Procedures must include accommodations for long term 
substitutes and/or extenuating circumstances. 

 
The first Home Visit may be completed by the teacher no more than four weeks prior to the first 
day of a child’s entry into school. If a child enters the program after January 1, a minimum of one 
Home Visit and one Parent/Teacher Conference must be completed by the last day of school. 
Documentation of the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences must be maintained in 
ChildPlus. If a Home Visit or Parent Conference did not occur, documentation regarding why the 
event did not occur must be noted in ChildPlus according to the ChildPlus Data Entry Guide. 

 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences will be conducted in the family’s home language and, 
when necessary, using the services of an interpreter. The Home Visits and Parent/Teacher 
Conferences should be scheduled at the parent’s/guardian’s convenience and if necessary, at a 
neutral location. 

 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences cannot be conducted on the same date.  Dates 
should be scheduled at intervals to allow for student growth, progress, and meaningful 
conversations. 
 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences offer opportunities for parents/guardians and staff 
to share knowledge related to the strengths, needs, interests, and concerns regarding the child and 
family. During the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences the teacher will share work 

Formatted: Left



14  

samples and applicable information related to assessment and student outcomes, behavioral and 
developmental screenings, program activities, and transitioning into kindergarten. 
 
 



15  

Education Service Providers will develop and implement procedures related to scheduling, safety, 
and meeting location of the Home Visit and Parent Conference. Additionally, the  Education Service 
Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure that the information shared at the 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences is documented and shared with the parent/guardian. 
 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.34 (b)(2-3, 7-8); 1302.46; 1302.50; 1302.71(a, b, e) 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"



13  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 1 

SUBJECT Home Visits/Parent Conferences 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 6/23/2015 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: Pending 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/27/21 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 

 
Head Start teachers must complete two Home Visits and two Parent/Teacher Conferences each 
school year. 

 
Education Service Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure the completion 
dates of the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences are entered into ChildPlus and meet the 
City of the San Antonio Benchmark Due Date Guide, ChildPlus File Scan Order and Process Guide, 
and applicable ChildPlus Data Entry Guide Procedures must include accommodations for long term 
substitutes and/or extenuating circumstances. 

 
The first Home Visit may be completed by the teacher no more than four weeks prior to the first 
day of a child’s entry into school. If a child enters the program after January 1, a minimum of one 
Home Visit and one Parent/Teacher Conference must be completed by the last day of school. 
Documentation of the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences must be maintained in 
ChildPlus. If a Home Visit or Parent Conference did not occur, documentation regarding why the 
event did not occur must be noted in ChildPlus according to the ChildPlus Data Entry Guide. 

 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences will be conducted in the family’s home language and, 
when necessary, using the services of an interpreter. The Home Visits and Parent/Teacher 
Conferences should be scheduled at the parent’s/guardian’s convenience and if necessary, at a 
neutral location. 

 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences cannot be conducted on the same date.  Dates 
should be scheduled at intervals to allow for student growth, progress, and meaningful 
conversations. 
 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences offer opportunities for parents/guardians and staff 
to share knowledge related to the strengths, needs, interests, and concerns regarding the child and 



14  

family. During the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences the teacher will share work 
samples and applicable information related to assessment and student outcomes, behavioral and 
developmental screenings, program activities, and transitioning into kindergarten. 
 
Education Service Providers will develop and implement procedures related to scheduling, safety, 
and meeting location of the Home Visit and Parent Conference. Additionally, the Education 
Service Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure that the information shared 
at the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences is documented and shared with the 
parent/guardian. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.34 (b)(2-3, 7-8); 1302.46; 1302.50; 1302.71(a, b, e) 



 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 7 

SUBJECT Ongoing Assessment 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 8/2/2011 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/25/21 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/27/21 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
Education Service Providers will administer a formal assessment that is research based and aligned 
with the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framework (HSELOF) and Texas Prekindergarten 
Guidelines. The assessment will be conducted three times during the year in the language of 
instruction. child’s home language. 

The data will be aggregated, analyzed, and reported according to the City of the San Antonio 
Benchmark Due Date Guide. Education Service Providers will be responsible for submitting 
requested reports and analysis on mandated outcomes. 

 
Education Service Providers develop and implement procedures to ensure teachers have a system 
to collect and document ongoing informal assessments, including student portfolios and work 
samples, used to evaluate child progress and inform instruction. 

 
 
Performance Standard: 
1302.33 

 
Head Start Act: 
642(f)(5)(c) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
21 



 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 7 

SUBJECT Ongoing Assessment 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 8/2/2011 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: Pending 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/27/21 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
Education Service Providers will administer a formal assessment that is research based and aligned 
with the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framework (HSELOF) and Texas Prekindergarten 
Guidelines. The assessment will be conducted three times during the year in the language of 
instruction. 

The data will be aggregated, analyzed, and reported according to the City of the San Antonio 
Benchmark Due Date Guide. Education Service Providers will be responsible for submitting 
requested reports and analysis on mandated outcomes. 

 
Education Service Providers develop and implement procedures to ensure teachers have a system 
to collect and document ongoing informal assessments, including student portfolios and work 
samples, used to evaluate child progress and inform instruction. 

 
 
Performance Standard: 
1302.33 

 
Head Start Act: 
642(f)(5)(c) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
21 



25  

 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 11 

SUBJECT Discipline and Guidance 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 12/13/2011 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 
Education Service Providers will develop and implement policies and procedures on discipline and 
guidance appropriate for children 3-5 years old. A copy must be provided to all parents/guardians, 
staff, volunteers, substitute teachers, and contractors. Documentation must be maintained 
showing receipt of the written discipline and guidance policies and procedures. 

 
The policies and procedures must include positive methods that build self-esteem and support self- 
control and self-regulation such as: 

• Praise and encouragement of developmentally appropriate behavior 
• Frequent reminders of behavior expectations using clear and positive statements 
• Redirection of behavior using positive statements 

The policies and procedures must include guidance on appropriate communication with 
parents/guardians regarding a child’s behavior. 

Discipline must be constructive, individualized, and consistent for each child, appropriate to the 
child’s level of understanding, and directed toward teaching the child developmentally appropriate 
behavior. Education Service Providers must prohibit or severely limit the use of suspension due to a 
child’s behavior. The Education Service Providers must not expel or unenroll a child from Head 
Start due to a child’s behavior, unless approved by the Head Start Administrator. 

 
When appropriate, for the child’s age and development, a brief supervised separation, or time away 
from the group, may be necessary, and should be limited to no more than one minute per year of 
the child’s age. 



26  

There must be no harsh, cruel, or unusual treatment of any child. The following are prohibited: 
 

• Corporal punishment or threats of corporal punishment 
• Punishment associated with food, naps, or toileting 
• Pinching, shaking, or biting a child 
• Hitting a child with hand or an object 
• Putting anything in or on a child’s mouth 
• Humiliating, ridiculing, rejecting, or yelling at a child 
• Pointing a finger in a child’s face 
• Snapping fingers at a child 
• Use of isolation to discipline a child 
• Binding or tying a student to restrict movement 
• Threatening phrases or sarcastic language 
• Threatening to call a child’s parent/guardian related to behavior 
• Subjecting a child to harsh, abusive, or profane language 
• Placing a child in a locked or dark room, bathroom, or closet with the door closed 
• Requiring a child to remain silent or inactive for inappropriately long periods of time for 

the child’s age 
• Child restraint performed by staff not certified in proper restraint procedures 
• Withholding outdoor free play 
• Requiring a parent/guardian to pick up a child due to misbehavior 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.17; 1302.31 (e)(2,4);1302.90 (c)(1-2) 



25  

 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 11 

SUBJECT Discipline and Guidance 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 12/13/2011 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: Pending 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 
Education Service Providers will develop and implement policies and procedures on discipline and 
guidance appropriate for children 3-5 years old. A copy must be provided to all parents/guardians, 
staff, volunteers, substitute teachers, and contractors. Documentation must be maintained 
showing receipt of the written discipline and guidance policies and procedures. 

 
The policies and procedures must include positive methods that build self-esteem and support self- 
control and self-regulation such as: 

• Praise and encouragement of developmentally appropriate behavior 
• Frequent reminders of behavior expectations using clear and positive statements 
• Redirection of behavior using positive statements 

The policies and procedures must include guidance on appropriate communication with 
parents/guardians regarding a child’s behavior. 

Discipline must be constructive, individualized, and consistent for each child, appropriate to the 
child’s level of understanding, and directed toward teaching the child developmentally appropriate 
behavior. Education Service Providers must prohibit or severely limit the use of suspension due to a 
child’s behavior. The Education Service Providers must not expel or unenroll a child from Head 
Start due to a child’s behavior, unless approved by the Head Start Administrator. 

 
When appropriate, for the child’s age and development, a brief supervised separation, or time away 
from the group, may be necessary, and should be limited to no more than one minute per year of 
the child’s age. 



26  

There must be no harsh, cruel, or unusual treatment of any child. The following are prohibited: 
 

• Corporal punishment or threats of corporal punishment 
• Punishment associated with food, naps, or toileting 
• Pinching, shaking, or biting a child 
• Hitting a child with hand or an object 
• Putting anything in or on a child’s mouth 
• Humiliating, ridiculing, rejecting, or yelling at a child 
• Pointing a finger in a child’s face 
• Snapping fingers at a child 
• Use of isolation to discipline a child 
• Binding or tying a student to restrict movement 
• Threatening phrases or sarcastic language 
• Threatening to call a child’s parent/guardian related to behavior 
• Subjecting a child to harsh, abusive, or profane language 
• Placing a child in a locked or dark room, bathroom, or closet with the door closed 
• Requiring a child to remain silent or inactive for inappropriately long periods of time for 

the child’s age 
• Child restraint performed by staff not certified in proper restraint procedures 
• Withholding outdoor free play 
• Requiring a parent/guardian to pick up a child due to misbehavior 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.17; 1302.31 (e)(2,4);1302.90 (c)(1-2) 



60  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EnvHS 2 
SUBJECT Staffing and Class Size Requirements 

REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 3/13/2012 
Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/25/21 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/27/21 

PAGE: 1 of 21 
 
Policy: 
 
 
All Head Start classrooms must be staffed by two paid staff persons: a teacher and an 
aide/instructional assistant/paraprofessional or two teachers. The program will maintain 
appropriate staffing during Head Start program hours except for brief absences of a teaching staff 
member for no more than five minutes to accommodate for a teacher or child’s needs. One 
teacher or staff member may accompany a small group of children away from the group for a 
brief period of time, not to exceed a ratio of 1:10, to accommodate for program needs, such as 
onsite clinics, special events, child restroom breaks, etc. 

  
 
Head Start Program hours vary by site and are set and approved at the beginning of the program 
year as part of the Education Service Provider’s Program Design. 

 
A class that serves a majority of children who are three years olds, must have no more than 17 
children. A class that serves a majority of children who are four and five years old, must have no 
more than 20 children. Class sizes are determined based on square footage, with a minimum of 
35 square feet/child. 

Head Start group/classroom size are determined by the age of the majority of children and 
the needs of children present.  

Education Service Providers must establish the classroom age designation of each 
classroom at the start of the year and may adjust this determination during the program 
year as needed.   

  

 

A class that serves a majority of children who are three years olds (51% or more), must have no 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Body Text, Justified, Right:  0.14", Space
Before:  14.6 pt

Formatted: Body Text, Justified, Right:  0.14", Space
Before:  14.6 pt



61  

more than 17 children. A class that serves a majority of children who are four and five years old 
(51%), must have no more than 20 children. Class sizes are also determined based on square 
footage, with a minimum of 35 square feet of usable indoor space per child available for the care 
and use of children and at least 75 square feet of usable outdoor play space per child.      
 
 
 
 

 

  
The predominant age of the class must be established at the start of each program year and is 
based on the age of the majority of the children in the classroom. Intact and separate 3-year-old 
and 4-year-old classes will be established prior to the beginning of the school year, or by 
September 1st, in order to create a developmentally appropriate learning environment for all 
children. The establishment of mixed age group classes or changes to the classroom age group 
designation must be authorized by the Head Start Grant Recipient. 

 
A volunteer may be used to maintain the required teacher/student ratio only for short periods of 
time, 10-15 minutes, to accommodate for unscheduled interruptions/emergencies. A volunteer 
must never be left alone with children. All volunteers must sign the Head Start Standards of 
Conduct, pass a background check, and receive volunteer training. Education Service Providers 
must maintain documentation of volunteer training, background checks, and Standards of 
Conduct. 



62  

Performance Standard(s): 
1302.21(b)(1-4); 1302.94(b) 



60  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EnvHS 2 
SUBJECT Class Size Requirements 

REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 3/13/2012 
Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: Pending 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/27/21 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
 
Head Start group/classroom size are determined by the age of the majority of children and 
the needs of children present.  

Education Service Providers must establish the classroom age designation of each 
classroom at the start of the year and may adjust this determination during the program 
year as needed.   

A class that serves a majority of children who are three years olds (51% or more), must have no 
more than 17 children. A class that serves a majority of children who are four and five years old 
(51%), must have no more than 20 children. Class sizes are also determined based on square 
footage, with a minimum of 35 square feet of usable indoor space per child available for the care 
and use of children and at least 75 square feet of usable outdoor play space per child.      
 

 
 Performance Standard(s): 
1302.21(b)(1-4); 1302.94(b) 



 
 

 

DHS Head Start 
Program 

Policy 

 

 

EnvHS 8 
SUBJECT Staffing and Supervision 
REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 4/21/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 
7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 
4/23/19 

Governing 
Body Approval: 
9/28/17 

Governing 
Body Revision: 
5/23/19 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 
All Head Start classrooms must be staffed by two paid staff persons: a teacher and an aide/instructional 
assistant/paraprofessional or two teachers. The program will maintain appropriate staffing except for brief 
absences of a teaching staff member for no more than five minutes to accommodate for a teacher or child’s 
needs. One teacher or staff member may accompany a small group of children away from the group for a brief 
period of time, not to exceed a ratio of 1:10, to accommodate for program needs, such as onsite clinics, special 
events, child restroom breaks, etc.  

 

Education Service Providers must develop a system to address required breaks and planning time.  The 
Head Start Program allows aides/instructional assistants/paraprofessionals to supervise a classroom during 
these required breaks and planning time, as long as there are two paid staff persons with the class.  

 
A volunteer may be used to maintain the required teacher/student ratio only for short periods of time, 10-15 
minutes, to accommodate for unscheduled interruptions/emergencies. A volunteer must never be left alone 
with children. All volunteers must sign the Head Start Standards of Conduct, pass a background check, and 
receive volunteer training. Education Service Providers must maintain documentation of volunteer training, 
background checks, and Standards of Conduct.  

 

Education Service Providers will develop and implement active supervision procedures. No child 
will be left alone or unsupervised for any period of time. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.21(b) 1302.90; 1302.47 (b){2){iii); 1302.47(b){S){i); 1302.47(b) (S){iii); 1302.94(b) 

 
Other Resources: 
ACF-IM-HS-15-05 

 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.08", Space
Before:  2.7 pt



 
 

 

DHS Head Start 
Program 

Policy 

 

 

EnvHS 8 
SUBJECT Staffing and Supervision 
REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 4/21/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 
7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 
4/23/19 

Governing 
Body Approval: 
9/28/17 

Governing 
Body Revision: 
5/23/19 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 

All Head Start classrooms must be staffed by two paid staff persons: a teacher and an 
aide/instructional assistant/paraprofessional or two teachers. The program will maintain 
appropriate staffing except for brief absences of a teaching staff member for no more than five 
minutes to accommodate for a teacher or child’s needs. One teacher or staff member may 
accompany a small group of children away from the group for a brief period of time, not to 
exceed a ratio of 1:10, to accommodate for program needs, such as onsite clinics, special events, 
child restroom breaks, etc.  

 

 Education Service Providers must develop a system to address required breaks and planning time.     
The Head Start Program allows aides/instructional assistants/paraprofessionals to supervise a 
classroom during these required breaks and planning time, as long as there are two paid staff 
persons with the class.  

 
A volunteer may be used to maintain the required teacher/student ratio only for short periods of 
time, 10-15 minutes, to accommodate for unscheduled interruptions/emergencies. A volunteer 
must never be left alone with children. All volunteers must sign the Head Start Standards of 
Conduct, pass a background check, and receive volunteer training. Education Service Providers 
must maintain documentation of volunteer training, background checks, and Standards of 
Conduct.  

 

Education Service Providers will develop and implement active supervision procedures. No 
child will be left alone or unsupervised for any period of time. 

 



 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.21(b) 1302.90; 1302.47 (b){2){iii); 1302.47(b){S){i); 1302.47(b) (S){iii); 1302.94(b) 

 
Other Resources: 
ACF-IM-HS-15-05 

 
 
 



 

 
DHS, Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

ERSEA 12 

SUBJECT Classroom Designation 

REFERENCE Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, and 
Attendance 

EFFECTIVE  

Policy Council 
Approval:  

Policy Council 
Revision:  

Governing Body 
Approval:  

Governing Body 
Revision:  

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
  
Education Service Providers must establish the classroom age designation of each classroom prior 
to the start of the program year and may adjust this determination during the program year, as 
needed.  Group/classroom size designations are determined by the age of the majority of children 
and the needs of children present. 
 
A class that serves a majority of children who are three years olds (51% or more), must have no 
more than 17 children. A class that serves a majority of children who are four and five years old 
(51%), must have no more than 20 children. Class sizes are also determined based on square 
footage, with a minimum of 35 square feet of usable indoor space per child available for the care 
and use of children and at least 75 square feet of usable outdoor play space per child.   
 
To ensure children and families of greatest need are enrolled in the program and to ensure the 
program meets funded enrollment, Education Service Providers may adjust the classroom age 
designation at any point in time during the school year without prior approval from DHS Head 
Start based on the current age of children enrolled in the classroom.    
 
The City of San Antonio DHS Head Start allows for mixed age classrooms, 3- and 4-year-old 
children enrolled in the same classroom.  Education Service Providers should consider the best 
placement for a child.  It is not recommended to place a three-year-old child in a classroom with a 
majority of the children four and five years old.     
 

 
Performance Standard: 
1302.21 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 9 

SUBJECT Critical Incident Reporting 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 12/13/2011 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/28/20 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 8/13/20 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including the Grant Recipient and Education Service Providers, will 
develop and implement procedures for Critical Incident Reporting (CIR). All staff must be trained on 
incident reporting. 

 
A critical incident includes, but is not limited to: 

 
• Suspected child abuse/neglect which may or may not have occurred during Head Start hours. 

 
• Allegations of child abuse/neglect or maltreatment against any Head Start staff member, 

volunteer, consultant, and or contractor, including, but not limited to grabbing, shoving, shaking, 
swatting, or dragging a child; spanking or any other type of corporal or physical punishment; 
binding, tying, or taping a child; terrorizing a child with threats or menacing acts; or any form of 
sexual contact. 

 
• Incidents which may have placed a child, family member, or staff in danger. 

 
• Any incident where a child is left unsupervised while in the care or under the supervision of 

program staff, which includes leaving a child alone anywhere on the grounds of a Head Start 
facility (e.g., in a classroom, bathroom, on a playground), as well as outside the facility in a 
parking lot, on a nearby street, or on a bus or another program-approved transportation or 
excursion/field trip. 
 

 
• Any incident that involves a classroom that is out of ratio.  The program will maintain 

appropriate staffing during Head Start program hours except for brief absences of a 
teaching staff member for no more than five minutes to accommodate for a teacher or 
child’s needs. One teacher or staff member may accompany a small group of children away 
from the group for a brief period of time, not to exceed a ratio of 1:10, to accommodate 
for program needs, such as onsite clinics, special events, child restroom breaks, etc. Any 
situation that involves a classroom out of ratio for a longer period of time should be 
reported. 

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0"

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Commented [M(1]: Do we need ALL of this?  Or just one 
statement?  



• Inappropriate discipline, which is any type of conduct used to instill fear or humiliate rather than 
to educate a child, such as poking or pinching a child; making fun of or laughing about a child; 
using/withholding food or an activity as a punishment or reward; or isolating a child. 

• Health incidents and illnesses, which include, but are not limited to: 
O Injuries that require urgent medical attention by a health-care professional, such as a broken 

bone; a severe sprain; chipped or cracked teeth; head trauma; deep cuts; contusions or 
lacerations; or animal bites. 

 
o Child or staff member leaving by emergency medical transport. 

o Any reportable disease/illnesses, as indicated by the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, State of Texas, the Texas Education Agency, the City of San Antonio Metro 
Health Department, or School District Health Department Child receiving outside 
medical attention at any point in time for an injury sustained during Head Start program 
hours. 

 
• Unauthorized release where a child is released from a Head Start facility, bus, or other approved 

program transportation to a person without the permission or authorization of a parent or legal 
guardian and whose identity had not been verified by photo identification. 

 
• Any incident which has the potential to generate negative media coverage. 

 
• Any media inquiry/ coverage of the program. 

 
• Unplanned interruption in Head Start Program services. 

 
• Closure of any facility or part of a facility, including outdoor play areas. 

 
• Accidents involving vehicles that transport children and families. 
•  

When applicable, parents/guardians must be notified of critical incidents within 24 hours of 
occurrence. Education Service Providers must also provide notification to the Head Start 
Administrator or designee within 24 hours. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.47(c); 1302.102(d)(1)(ii); 1304.12; 1303.79(b)(3) 

 
Information 
Memorandum: ACF-IM-
HS-22-07 



 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 9 

SUBJECT Critical Incident Reporting 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 12/13/2011 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/28/20 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 8/13/20 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including the Grant Recipient and Education Service Providers, will 
develop and implement procedures for Critical Incident Reporting (CIR). All staff must be trained on 
incident reporting. 

 
A critical incident includes, but is not limited to: 

 
• Suspected child abuse/neglect which may or may not have occurred during Head Start hours. 

 
• Allegations of child abuse/neglect or maltreatment against any Head Start staff member, 

volunteer, consultant, and or contractor, including, but not limited to grabbing, shoving, shaking, 
swatting, or dragging a child; spanking or any other type of corporal or physical punishment; 
binding, tying, or taping a child; terrorizing a child with threats or menacing acts; or any form of 
sexual contact. 

 
• Incidents which may have placed a child, family member, or staff in danger. 

 
• Any incident where a child is left unsupervised while in the care or under the supervision of 

program staff, which includes leaving a child alone anywhere on the grounds of a Head Start 
facility (e.g., in a classroom, bathroom, on a playground), as well as outside the facility in a 
parking lot, on a nearby street, or on a bus or another program-approved transportation or 
excursion/field trip. 
 

 
• Any incident that involves a classroom that is out of ratio.  The program will maintain 

appropriate staffing during Head Start program hours except for brief absences of a 
teaching staff member for no more than five minutes to accommodate for a teacher or 
child’s needs. One teacher or staff member may accompany a small group of children away 
from the group for a brief period of time, not to exceed a ratio of 1:10, to accommodate 
for program needs, such as onsite clinics, special events, child restroom breaks, etc. Any 
situation that involves a classroom out of ratio for a longer period of time should be 
reported. 



• Inappropriate discipline, which is any type of conduct used to instill fear or humiliate rather than 
to educate a child, such as poking or pinching a child; making fun of or laughing about a child; 
using/withholding food or an activity as a punishment or reward; or isolating a child. 

• Health incidents and illnesses, which include, but are not limited to: 
 

O Injuries that require urgent medical attention by a health-care professional, such as a broken 
bone; a severe sprain; chipped or cracked teeth; head trauma; deep cuts; contusions or 
lacerations; or animal bites. 

 
o Child or staff member leaving by emergency medical transport. 

o Any reportable disease/illnesses, as indicated by the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, State of Texas, the Texas Education Agency, the City of San Antonio Metro 
Health Department, or School District Health Department Child receiving outside 
medical attention at any point in time for an injury sustained during Head Start program 
hours. 

 
• Unauthorized release where a child is released from a Head Start facility, bus, or other approved 

program transportation to a person without the permission or authorization of a parent or legal 
guardian and whose identity had not been verified by photo identification. 

 
• Any incident which has the potential to generate negative media coverage. 

 
• Any media inquiry/ coverage of the program. 

 
• Unplanned interruption in Head Start Program services. 

 
• Closure of any facility or part of a facility, including outdoor play areas. 

 
• Accidents involving vehicles that transport children and families. 

 

When applicable, parents/guardians must be notified of critical incidents within 24 hours of 
occurrence. Education Service Providers must also provide notification to the Head Start 
Administrator or designee within 24 hours. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.47(c); 1302.102(d)(1)(ii); 1304.12; 1303.79(b)(3) 

 
Information 
Memorandum: ACF-IM-
HS-22-0



128  

 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 10 

SUBJECT Personnel 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 3/13/2012 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/28/20 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 8/13/20 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 

 
The Head Start Program and Education Service Providers will abide by their internal agency personnel 
policies and procedures which must meet or exceed applicable requirements including Head Start 
regulations as well as local, state, and federal laws. 

 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program personnel policies must be approved by the Governing 
Board, or the designated CoSA Advisory Committee, and Policy Council and must be available to all 
staff. The Head Start Policy Council will approve decisions regarding the employment of program 
staff as stated in paragraph 1(E)(iv)(IX), regarding the hiring, evaluation, compensation, and 
termination of the Executive Director, Head Start Director, and any other person in an equivalent 
position within the Head Start Program. 

 
The Head Start Program collaborates with the City of San Antonio’s Human Resources Department 
to ensure all newly hired City staff complete the required criminal background checks prior to 
employment. According to the City of San Antonio’s Administrative Directive (AD) 4.55, the City 
conducts Criminal Background Checks (CBC) as part of the initial employment process and applies to 
volunteers and interns. 

Head Start Program and Education Service Provider Background Check Requirements: 
 

a. Before a person is hired, directly or through a contract, including transportation staff and 
contractors, the Head Start Program and Education Service Providers must conduct an 
interview, verify references, conduct a sex offender registry check, and obtain one of the 
following: 

i. State or tribal criminal history records, including fingerprint checks; or, 
ii. Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including fingerprint 

checks. 

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0"



129  

b. A program has 90 days after an employee is hired to complete the background check 
process by obtaining: 

i. Whichever check listed in paragraph (a) of this section was not obtained prior to 
the date of hire; and, 

ii. Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if available. 
 

c. A program must review the information found in each employment application and 
complete background check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete 
background check. 

d. A program must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, or contractor does not have 
unsupervised access to children until the background check process is complete. 

e. A program must conduct the complete background check for each employee, consultant, 
or contractor at least once every five years and must include each of the four checks listed 
above. 

e.f. A program must provide new hire(s) start date, criminal background check date and 
teaching credentials to the assigned DHS Head Start staff member according to the City 
of the San Antonio Benchmark Due Date Guide. 

The Head Start Program will consider current and former program parents for employment 
vacancies for which such parents apply and are qualified. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.90(a-b) 

 
Head Start Act: 
642(c)(1)(E)(iv)(V)(cc); 642(c)(1)(E)(IX); 642(c)(2)(D)(vi) 

 
City of San Antonio Administrative Directive (AD): 
4.55 Background Checks/Reporting Arrests, Indictments and Convictions 



128  

 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 10 

SUBJECT Personnel 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 3/13/2012 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/28/20 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 8/13/20 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 

 
The Head Start Program and Education Service Providers will abide by their internal agency personnel 
policies and procedures which must meet or exceed applicable requirements including Head Start 
regulations as well as local, state, and federal laws. 

 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program personnel policies must be approved by the Governing 
Board, or the designated CoSA Advisory Committee, and Policy Council and must be available to all 
staff. The Head Start Policy Council will approve decisions regarding the employment of program 
staff as stated in paragraph 1(E)(iv)(IX), regarding the hiring, evaluation, compensation, and 
termination of the Executive Director, Head Start Director, and any other person in an equivalent 
position within the Head Start Program. 

 
The Head Start Program collaborates with the City of San Antonio’s Human Resources Department 
to ensure all newly hired City staff complete the required criminal background checks prior to 
employment. According to the City of San Antonio’s Administrative Directive (AD) 4.55, the City 
conducts Criminal Background Checks (CBC) as part of the initial employment process and applies to 
volunteers and interns. 

Head Start Program and Education Service Provider Background Check Requirements: 
 

a. Before a person is hired, directly or through a contract, including transportation staff and 
contractors, the Head Start Program and Education Service Providers must conduct an 
interview, verify references, conduct a sex offender registry check, and obtain one of the 
following: 

i. State or tribal criminal history records, including fingerprint checks; or, 
ii. Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including fingerprint 

checks. 



129  

b. A program has 90 days after an employee is hired to complete the background check 
process by obtaining: 

i. Whichever check listed in paragraph (a) of this section was not obtained prior to 
the date of hire; and, 

ii. Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if available. 
 

c. A program must review the information found in each employment application and 
complete background check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete 
background check. 

d. A program must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, or contractor does not have 
unsupervised access to children until the background check process is complete. 

e. A program must conduct the complete background check for each employee, consultant, 
or contractor at least once every five years and must include each of the four checks listed 
above. 

f. A program must provide new hire(s) start date, criminal background check date and 
teaching credentials to the assigned DHS Head Start staff member according to the City 
of the San Antonio Benchmark Due Date Guide. 

The Head Start Program will consider current and former program parents for employment 
vacancies for which such parents apply and are qualified. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.90(a-b) 

 
Head Start Act: 
642(c)(1)(E)(iv)(V)(cc); 642(c)(1)(E)(IX); 642(c)(2)(D)(vi) 

 
City of San Antonio Administrative Directive (AD): 
4.55 Background Checks/Reporting Arrests, Indictments and Convictions 



 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 11 

SUBJECT Program Governance 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 3/13/2012 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 11/19/19 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 1/16/20 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program (Program) has established a formal structure for program 
governance: the City of San Antonio City Council is the Governing Body, and the Head Start Policy 
Council (Policy Council) is a body of elected parents of currently enrolled children and elected 
members of the community. City Council approves or disapproves legal and fiscal matters pertaining 
to the Head Start grant and oversees the Program. City Council has authorized subcommittees to 
oversee key responsibilities related to program governance and improvement of the Program. The 
Policy Council allows for parent participation in policy-making and other decisions about the program, 
as statutorily required by the Head Start Program Performance Standards and Section 642 
(c) of the Head Start aAct. 
 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program will develop and implement procedures related to 
information reported to the provide to Head Start Policy Council (HSPC) and program governance 
advisory committees as required by the Head Start Program Performance Standards and Section 642 
(c) of the Head Start Act .  

In addition, the Program will establish parent committees exclusively of parents of currently enrolled 
children to advise staff and the Policy Council. 

 
Performance Standards Regulations: 
Head Start Program Performance Standards Sec. 1301 

Head Start Act of 2007 Sec. 642(c)(1)\ and Sec. 642(c)(2) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 11 

SUBJECT Program Governance 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 3/13/2012 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 11/19/19 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 1/16/20 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program has established a formal structure for program 
governance: the City of San Antonio City Council is the Governing Body, and the Head Start Policy 
Council (Policy Council) is a body of elected parents of currently enrolled children and elected 
members of the community. City Council approves or disapproves legal and fiscal matters pertaining 
to the Head Start grant and oversees the Program. City Council has authorized subcommittees to 
oversee key responsibilities related to program governance and improvement of the Program. The 
Policy Council allows for parent participation in policy-making and other decisions about the program, 
as statutorily required by the Head Start Program Performance Standards and Section 642 
(c) of the Head Start Act. 
 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program will develop and implement procedures related to 
information reported to the Head Start Policy Council (HSPC) and program governance advisory 
committees as required by the Head Start Program Performance Standards and Section 642 
(c) of the Head Start Act.  

In addition, the Program will establish parent committees exclusively of parents of currently enrolled 
children to advise staff and the Policy Council. 

 
Performance Standards: 
Head Start Program Performance Standards Sec. 1301 

Head Start Act of 2007 Sec. 642(c)(1)\ and Sec. 642(c)(2) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



140  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 18 

SUBJECT Program Data - Access and Security 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 
EFFECTIVE April 23, 2018 
Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 3 
 

Policy: 

 
The Head Start Grant Recipient and Education Service Providers must establish an internal 
procedure for proper access and security of program data for the City of San Antonio Department 
of Human Services Head Start and Early Head Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 

DHS Head Start utilizes ChildPlus as the secure database system for storing and tracking client 
information. 

 
All user account holders are required to complete ChildPlus Access Request and ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement forms. Upon completion, the forms are scanned and 
attached by the ChildPlus Administrator in ChildPlus under each respective user profile. 

By accessing the database, staff understand and agree to abide by all terms of the ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement and any applicable state and federal laws regarding 
Personally Identifiable Information (PII) and Protected Health Information (PHI). 

 
• Education Service Providers are required to designate a staff member to complete the 

Personnel Profile for all staff members funded by the Head Start or EHS grant or 
anyone who works with children or families enrolled in the Head Start or EHS 
programs under the Management Module in ChildPlus. Designated staff is defined as 
preauthorized users in the Management/Personnel Module. 

• Upon completion of the Personnel Profile, the designee will notify the ChildPlus 
Administrator if the user requires access to PII. Not all personnel require a ChildPlus 
user account. 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will confirm with the designee the role of personnel and 
the types of access required. 



141  

• The ChildPlus Administrator will complete a User Security profile in ChildPlus, 
assign a login username and temporary password, restrict access by location, and 
designate User Security group(s). 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will email the new account holder the login username 
and temporary password. 

• The new account holder will log into ChildPlus and change the temporary password 
to a permanent password. 

 
Authorized ChildPlus users are granted access under one of the following groupings: 

 
• Staff: A ChildPlus personnel account will be created for all staff. ChildPlus user 

accounts and access is granted upon the approval of the ChildPlus Access Request 
Form and the completion of the ChildPlus User Security and Confidentiality 
Agreement Form. 

• Education Service Providers: An assigned ChildPlus Super User for each Service 
Provider formally requests accounts via email for Service Provider Head Start Staff. 
Service providers are subject to the confidentiality provisions under the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). 

• Contracted Providers: A Special Projects Manager or designee will request user 
accounts for contractual providers via email or meeting with the ChildPlus 
Administrator. To meet the requirements of Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), DHS Head Start requires any contract that 
include access to client information include an enforceable Business Associate 
Agreement (BAA). BAAs are documented in the professional services contract with 
the DHS Head Start. 

Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems that 
maintain electronic PII, PHI, and IDEA Part B and C to allow access only to those persons or 
software programs that have been granted access rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard HIPAA, 
FERPA, PHI, PII, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data and 
information from unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII and 
IDEA Part B and C electronically must follow encryption guidelines and ensure the receiving 
entity is an authorized recipient of the specific data being delivered. 
 
To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to HIPAA, 
FERPA, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data, program 
staff should utilize a child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials when communicating 
via email, TEAMS, or other electronic messaging system.    

 
Staff may request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain PHI or PII via the 
secure ChildPlus Request Document feature.    

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"



142  

Staff may utilize a program issued computer or device to access ChildPlus. 
 

Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure and only authorized. 



143  

persons are within viewing distance of the authorized user’s screen and/or confidential 
documents. Staff should use a privacy screen for all monitors and laptop screens as 
appropriate. 

 
All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum timeout 
of 15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when leaving their 
desk (Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL). 

 
Disclosure of ChildPlus information to a contractor is authorized but ONLY when an 
enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA) is in place. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings: 

• COSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPAA Training 

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San Antonio Human 
Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance Team. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must acknowledge the of CoSA Administrative Directives that include 
Data Security and Use of Technology. 

 
Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures to 
ensure all staff comply with this procedure and ensure all staff receive training on 
safeguarding FERPA, HIPAA, PHI, PII and (IDEA) Part B and C data. 

 
 

Performance Standard: 
1302.101(b)(4) 



  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 18 

SUBJECT Program Data - Access and Security 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 
EFFECTIVE April 23, 2018 
Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 3 
 

Policy: 

 
The Head Start Grant Recipient and Education Service Providers must establish an internal 
procedure for proper access and security of program data for the City of San Antonio Department 
of Human Services Head Start and Early Head Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 

DHS Head Start utilizes ChildPlus as the secure database system for storing and tracking client 
information. 

 
All user account holders are required to complete ChildPlus Access Request and ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement forms. Upon completion, the forms are scanned and 
attached by the ChildPlus Administrator in ChildPlus under each respective user profile. 

By accessing the database, staff understand and agree to abide by all terms of the ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement and any applicable state and federal laws regarding 
Personally Identifiable Information (PII) and Protected Health Information (PHI). 

 
• Education Service Providers are required to designate a staff member to complete the 

Personnel Profile for all staff members funded by the Head Start or EHS grant or 
anyone who works with children or families enrolled in the Head Start or EHS 
programs under the Management Module in ChildPlus. Designated staff is defined as 
preauthorized users in the Management/Personnel Module. 

• Upon completion of the Personnel Profile, the designee will notify the ChildPlus 
Administrator if the user requires access to PII. Not all personnel require a ChildPlus 
user account. 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will confirm with the designee the role of personnel and 
the types of access required. 



  

• The ChildPlus Administrator will complete a User Security profile in ChildPlus, 
assign a login username and temporary password, restrict access by location, and 
designate User Security group(s). 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will email the new account holder the login username 
and temporary password. 

• The new account holder will log into ChildPlus and change the temporary password 
to a permanent password. 

 
Authorized ChildPlus users are granted access under one of the following groupings: 

 
• Staff: A ChildPlus personnel account will be created for all staff. ChildPlus user 

accounts and access is granted upon the approval of the ChildPlus Access Request 
Form and the completion of the ChildPlus User Security and Confidentiality 
Agreement Form. 

• Education Service Providers: An assigned ChildPlus Super User for each Service 
Provider formally requests accounts via email for Service Provider Head Start Staff. 
Service providers are subject to the confidentiality provisions under the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). 

• Contracted Providers: A Special Projects Manager or designee will request user 
accounts for contractual providers via email or meeting with the ChildPlus 
Administrator. To meet the requirements of Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), DHS Head Start requires any contract that 
include access to client information include an enforceable Business Associate 
Agreement (BAA). BAAs are documented in the professional services contract with 
the DHS Head Start. 

Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems that 
maintain electronic PII, PHI, and IDEA Part B and C to allow access only to those persons or 
software programs that have been granted access rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard HIPAA, 
FERPA, PHI, PII, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data and 
information from unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII and 
IDEA Part B and C electronically must follow encryption guidelines and ensure the receiving 
entity is an authorized recipient of the specific data being delivered. 
 
To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to HIPAA, 
FERPA, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data, program 
staff should utilize a child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials when communicating 
via email, TEAMS, or other electronic messaging system.    

 
 
 
 



  

Staff may request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain PHI or PII via the secure 
ChildPlus Request Document feature.   
 
Staff may utilize a program issued computer or device to access ChildPlus.   
 
Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure and only authorized persons are 
within viewing distance of the authorized user’s screen and/or confidential documents. Staff 
should use a privacy screen for all monitors and laptop screens as appropriate. 

 
All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum timeout 
of 15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when leaving their 
desk (Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL). 

 
Disclosure of ChildPlus information to a contractor is authorized but ONLY when an 
enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA) is in place. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings: 

• COSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPAA Training 
•  

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San Antonio 
Human Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance Team. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must acknowledge the of CoSA Administrative Directives that include 
Data Security and Use of Technology. 

 
Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures to 
ensure all staff comply with this procedure and ensure all staff receive training on 
safeguarding FERPA, HIPAA, PHI, PII and (IDEA) Part B and C data. 

 
 

Performance Standard: 
1302.101(b)(4) 



143  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 19 

SUBJECT Management of Program Data 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 
EFFECTIVE April 23, 2018 

Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 

 
The Head Start Program, including the Head Start Grant Recipient and Education Service Providers, 
must establish an internal procedure for proper management of program data for the City of San 
Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start and Early Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 

 
Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems that 
maintain electronic Personal Identifiable Information (PII), Protected Health Information (PHI), and 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C to allow access only to those persons or 
software programs that have been granted access rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
1996 (HIPAA), PHI, PII, and the IDEA Part B and C related data and information from unauthorized 
access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII and IDEA Part B and C information 
electronically must ensure the receiving entity is an authorized recipient of the specific data being 
delivered. 

 
• Only computers and or device configured by the IT Department for use on the CoSA network 

or Education Service Provider network are authorized for the storage or transport of PHI, PII 
and/or IDEA Part B and C data. 

• Staff may utilize a program issued device to access systems to view and maintain PHI, PII, and 
IDEA Part B and C files. 

• Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure and only authorized 
persons are within viewing distance of the authorized user’s screen. Staff should use a 
privacy screen for all monitors and laptop screens as appropriate. 

• Disclosure of PII and/or PHI, and/or IDEA Part B and C to a contractor is authorized but ONLY 
when an enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA) is in place. 



144  

• Personal devices shall not be used to store or transmit unencrypted protected data. 

• Any removable media or storage devices used to transfer PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C 
data must be encrypted. 

• All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum timeout 
of 15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when leaving their 
desk (Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL). 

• If any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data is transmitted via email, the email must be 
encrypted. 

• To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to HIPAA, 
FERPA, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data, program 
staff should utilize a child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials.    

• Hard copies (i.e., paper) of any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data must be kept secured in a 
lockable file cabinet or other secured storage. 

• In the event that PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data, either hard copy or electronic, are 
transported between locations, staff must take all precautions to ensure the materials remain 
secure and must remain in the presence of staff at all times. 

• Staff should not request PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data via text or email. Staff may 
request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain this information via the secure 
ChildPlus Request Document feature.    

 
Facsimiles: 

 
Any documents received via facsimile, either telefax or online, that contain PHI, PII and/or IDEA Part B 
and C data shall be uploaded or scanned into appropriate software (i.e., ChildPlus) as soon as possible. 
Any electronic copies of the facsimile should be saved to the user’s desktop; once the upload is 
completed the file should be deleted and the deletion confirmed. Any hardcopies of the facsimile must 
be stored in a secure location or destroyed. Any hardcopies of the documents sent via facsimile, either 
telefax or online, that contain PHI, PII and/or IDEA Part B and C data shall be either stored in a secure 
location or destroyed. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings annually: 

• COSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPAA Training 

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San Antonio Human 
Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance Team. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff review and acknowledge review and acceptance of CoSA Administrative 
Directives that include Data Security and Use of Technology. 

 
Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures to ensure all 
staff comply with this procedure and receive training on safeguarding FERPA, HIPAA, PHI, PII and 
IDEA Part B and C data. 

 
 



145  

Performance Standard: 
1302.101(b)(4) 



143  

 

 

DHS Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 19 

SUBJECT Management of Program Data 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 
EFFECTIVE April 23, 2018 

Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

 
Policy: 

 
The Head Start Program, including the Head Start Grant Recipient and Education Service Providers, 
must establish an internal procedure for proper management of program data for the City of San 
Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start and Early Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 

 
Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems that 
maintain electronic Personal Identifiable Information (PII), Protected Health Information (PHI), and 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C to allow access only to those persons or 
software programs that have been granted access rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
1996 (HIPAA), PHI, PII, and the IDEA Part B and C related data and information from unauthorized 
access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII and IDEA Part B and C information 
electronically must ensure the receiving entity is an authorized recipient of the specific data being 
delivered. 

 
• Only computers and or device configured by the IT Department for use on the CoSA network 

or Education Service Provider network are authorized for the storage or transport of PHI, PII 
and/or IDEA Part B and C data. 

• Staff may utilize a program issued device to access systems to view and maintain PHI, PII, and 
IDEA Part B and C files. 

• Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure and only authorized 
persons are within viewing distance of the authorized user’s screen. Staff should use a 
privacy screen for all monitors and laptop screens as appropriate. 

• Disclosure of PII and/or PHI, and/or IDEA Part B and C to a contractor is authorized but ONLY 
when an enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA) is in place. 



144  

• Personal devices shall not be used to store or transmit unencrypted protected data. 

• Any removable media or storage devices used to transfer PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C 
data must be encrypted. 

• All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum timeout 
of 15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when leaving their 
desk (Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL). 

• If any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data is transmitted via email, the email must be 
encrypted. 

• To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to HIPAA, 
FERPA, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data, program 
staff should utilize a child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials.    

• Hard copies (i.e., paper) of any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data must be kept secured in a 
lockable file cabinet or other secured storage. 

• In the event that PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data, either hard copy or electronic, are 
transported between locations, staff must take all precautions to ensure the materials remain 
secure and must remain in the presence of staff at all times. 

• Staff should not request PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data via text or email. Staff may 
request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain this information via the secure 
ChildPlus Request Document feature.    

 
Facsimiles: 

 
Any documents received via facsimile, either telefax or online, that contain PHI, PII and/or IDEA 
Part B and C data shall be uploaded or scanned into appropriate software (i.e., ChildPlus) as 
soon as possible. Any electronic copies of the facsimile should be saved to the user’s desktop; 
once the upload is completed the file should be deleted and the deletion confirmed. Any 
hardcopies of the facsimile must be stored in a secure location or destroyed. Any hardcopies of 
the documents sent via facsimile, either telefax or online, that contain PHI, PII and/or IDEA Part 
B and C data shall be either stored in a secure location or destroyed. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings annually: 

• COSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPAA Training 

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San Antonio Human 
Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance Team. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff review and acknowledge review and acceptance of CoSA Administrative 
Directives that include Data Security and Use of Technology. 

 
Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures to ensure all 
staff comply with this procedure and receive training on safeguarding FERPA, HIPAA, PHI, PII and 
IDEA Part B and C data. 

 
Performance Standard: 



145  

1302.101(b)(4) 



 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 21 

SUBJECT Responsibility of fees related to injuries 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 05/2024 

Policy Council 
Approval:  

Policy Council 
Revision:  

Governing 
Body 
Approval:  

Governing 
Body Revision:  

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

 

The City of San Antonio is not responsible to pay medical bills, including ambulance fees, related to an 
injury sustained by a child, or their parent/guardian, enrolled in the City of San Antonio Department of 
Human Services Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). The City of San Antonio is a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas and subject to the Texas Tort Claims Act (Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem. Code, 
Section 101.001, et. seq.), with limited liability.  

Education Service Providers must ensure information related to liability and injuries sustained while on 
site or participating in services are available to parents/guardians with a child or children enrolled in the 
program. If a parent/guardian with a child enrolled in the DHS Head Start Program has a claim against the 
City of San Antonio, they may submit the claim to the Office of Risk Management at 
https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration  

If a City of San Antonio Staff Member sustains an injury during work hours, regardless of location of the 
accident, they must contact their supervisor, submit an accident report, and follow the requirements 
outlined in Administrative Directive 4.84. 

Any staff member employed by the Education Service Provider must follow the established school 
district and childcare center policies and procedures related to accidents and injuries.  

Reference: Texas Torts Claims Act; City of San Antonio Administrative Directive 4.84; City of San 
Antonio Risk Management 

 

https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration
https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration
https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration


 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

PDM 22 

SUBJECT Head Start Program Services  

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 05/2024 

Policy Council 
Approval:  

Policy Council 
Revision:  

Governing 
Body 
Approval:  

Governing 
Body Revision:  

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

Each program year, the City of San Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start Program 
(DHS Head Start) provides a minimum of 1,020 hours of planned class operations for the Head 
Start (HS) Prekindergarten Program,  1,380 hours of planned class operations for the Early Head 
Start (EHS) center-based program, and a 10-hour day for 240 days of planned class operations 
for the Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) program. 

DHS Head Start program hours vary by site and are set and approved at the beginning of the 
program year as part of the Education Service Provider’s Program Design.   
 
All DHS Head Start requirements, including staff-student ratio, must be met during the 
designated Head Start service hours, and/or when a child is received by a Head Start or Early 
Head Start staff member or signed into a Head Start or Early Head Start classroom by a 
parent/guardian, school personnel, bus driver/aide, or other caregiver at any  point in time 
during the day.     

Reference: 1302.21 



 

 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION 1 

SUBJECT General Requirements 

REFERENCE Transportation 

EFFECTIVE 4/21/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/25/17 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 9/28/17 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

 
 
Education Service Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure the safe operations 
of vehicles used to transport children enrolled in the City of San Antonio Department of Human 
Services Head Start Program, including during field trips. These procedures must include: 

• Provisions for emergency and safety equipment on board 

• Vehicle maintenance 

• Training and documentation of bus staff on emergency and safety procedures 

• Trip routing 

• Pick up and drop off children to and from campus 

• Release of a child to designated adult 
 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1303.71; 1303.72; 1303.73 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION 1 

SUBJECT General Requirements 

REFERENCE Transportation 

EFFECTIVE 4/21/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/25/17 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 9/28/17 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

 
 
Education Service Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure the safe operations 
of vehicles used to transport children enrolled in the City of San Antonio Department of Human 
Services Head Start Program, including during field trips. These procedures must include: 

• Provisions for emergency and safety equipment on board 

• Vehicle maintenance 

• Training and documentation of bus staff on emergency and safety procedures 

• Trip routing 

• Pick up and drop off children to and from campus 

• Release of a child to designated adult 
 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1303.71; 1303.72; 1303.73 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION 3 

SUBJECT Child Restraint Systems & Bus Monitor 

REFERENCE Transportation 

EFFECTIVE 4/21/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/25/17 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 9/28/17 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
The City of San Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start Program provides 
transportation services through the established partnership with Edgewood ISD and San Antonio 
ISD students that live more than two miles from their assigned home campus, qualify through 
McKinney-Vento Services or IDEA, or attend an early childhood center.    

 
The Education Service Providers provide Head Start transportation services, including field trips, 
and must ensure that each vehicle used to transport children enrolled in the Head Start Program 
is equipped with height and weight-appropriate child safety restraint systems and includes a bus 
monitor.  
 

If the Education Service Providers are unable to provide child safety restraint systems and a bus 
monitor for any vehicle used to transport any child enrolled in the Head Start Program, the City of 
San Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start Program will request a Transportation 
Waiver from the Office of Head Start.   
 
Education Service Providers must notify the City of San Antonio Department of Human Services Head 
Start Program Administrator, or designated staff member, by April 1 if they are unable to meet the 
safety restraint and bus monitor requirements for the upcoming school year.   
 
Performance Standards: 
1303.70; 1303.71 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
DHS Head Start Program 

Policy 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION 3 

SUBJECT Child Restraint Systems & Bus Monitor 

REFERENCE Transportation 

EFFECTIVE 4/21/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/25/17 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/25/17 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/28/17 

Governing Body 
Revision: 9/28/17 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
The City of San Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start Program provides 
transportation services through the established partnership with Edgewood ISD and San Antonio 
ISD students that live more than two miles from their assigned home campus, qualify through 
McKinney-Vento Services or IDEA, or attend an early childhood center.    

 
The Education Service Providers offeringprovide Head Start transportation services, including 
field trips, and must ensure that each vehicle used to transport children enrolled in the Head 
Start Program is equipped with height and weight-appropriate child safety restraint systems and 
includes a bus monitor. . 
 

If the Education Service Providers are unable to provide child safety restraint systems and a bus 
monitor for any vehicle used to transport any child enrolled in the Head Start Program, the City of 
San Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start Program will request a Transportation 
Waiver from the Office of Head Start.   
 
Education Service Providers must notify the City of San Antonio Department of Human Services Head 
Start Program Administrator, or designated staff member, by April 1 if they are unable to meet the 
safety restraint and bus monitor requirements for the upcoming school year.   
 
Performance Standards: 
1303.70; 1303.71 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Body Text, Indent: Left:  0.07", Right:  0.13"

Formatted: Body Text



Early Head Start



 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

DISABILITIES 1 

SUBJECT Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) for Children with 
Delays/Disabilities 

REFERENCE Disabilities Services 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
The Individualization policy guidelines in Education 3 Policy and the information provided in the 
child’s IFSP will be used when planning individualized strategies and activities for children with 
delays/disabilities. Every effort must be made to include children with delays/disabilities in all 
program activities. 

 
Early Head Start (EHS), Service Providers and City of San Antonio staff will coordinate to receive and 
review the IFSP as soon as possible after the Initial Assessment or Assessment meetings. If a child 
enters the EHS Program with a current IFSP, City of San Antonio staff will coordinate with Service 
Providers to review the IFSP within 150 business days of a child’s first day of attendance or first 
home visit for children enrolled in the home-based program. 

 
Service Providers must initiate the implementation of the IFSP immediately after the review by 
modifying the child's daily activities in accordance with the IFSP and arranging for the provision of 
related services to accommodate the unique strengths, needs, interests, learning style, and cultural 
and linguistic background of the child. 

 
Copies of the IFSP will be maintained in the Child File. Confidentiality of information will be 
maintained at all times. Individual child disability information and copies of additional required 
documents will be entered into ChildPlus according to the City of San Antonio Benchmark Due Date 
Guide and the EHS Child File Scan Order and Attachment Guide. 

 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.61; 1302.62; 1302.63; 1303.75 

 
 
 
 

 
7 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

DISABILITIES 1 

SUBJECT Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP) for Children with 
Delays/Disabilities 

REFERENCE Disabilities Services 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
The Individualization policy guidelines in Education 3 Policy and the information provided in the 
child’s IFSP will be used when planning individualized strategies and activities for children with 
delays/disabilities. Every effort must be made to include children with delays/disabilities in all 
program activities. 

 
Early Head Start (EHS), Service Providers and City of San Antonio staff will coordinate to receive and 
review the IFSP as soon as possible after the Initial Assessment or Assessment meetings. If a child 
enters the EHS Program with a current IFSP, City of San Antonio staff will coordinate with Service 
Providers to review the IFSP within 15 business days of a child’s first day of attendance or first home 
visit for children enrolled in the home-based program. 

 
Service Providers must initiate the implementation of the IFSP immediately after the review by 
modifying the child's daily activities in accordance with the IFSP and arranging for the provision of 
related services to accommodate the unique strengths, needs, interests, learning style, and cultural 
and linguistic background of the child. 

 
Copies of the IFSP will be maintained in the Child File. Confidentiality of information will be 
maintained at all times. Individual child disability information and copies of additional required 
documents will be entered into ChildPlus according to the City of San Antonio Benchmark Due Date 
Guide and the EHS Child File Scan Order and Attachment Guide. 

 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.61; 1302.62; 1302.63; 1303.75 

 
 
 
 

 
7 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

DISABILITIES 3 

SUBJECT Children with developmental delays who do not qualify for 
Part C Services 

REFERENCE Disability Services 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS), Service Providers will serve children with suspected or diagnosed 
delays/disabilities who do not qualify for Part C services from the local Early Childhood Intervention 
Programs (ECI). 

City of San Antonio Staff and teachers will work with parents to identify the child’s strengths, needs 
and interests and develop and implement strategies to ensure positive student outcomes. City of San 
Antonio Staff and teachers will monitor the child’s progress. If a child does not exhibit progress while 
in the EHS Program, a request for re-evaluation may be submitted to an ECI Program with 
parent/guardian consent.. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.31; 1302.33; 1302.41; 1302.46; 1302.43 (d) (1-2); 1302.62 (a) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

DISABILITIES 3 

SUBJECT Children with developmental delays who do not qualify for 
Part C Services 

REFERENCE Disability Services 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS), Service Providers will serve children with suspected or diagnosed 
delays/disabilities who do not qualify for Part C services from the local Early Childhood Intervention 
Programs (ECI). 

City of San Antonio Staff and teachers will work with parents to identify the child’s strengths, needs 
and interests and develop and implement strategies to ensure positive student outcomes. City of San 
Antonio Staff and teachers will monitor the child’s progress. If a child does not exhibit progress while 
in the EHS Program, a request for re-evaluation may be submitted to an ECI Program with 
parent/guardian consent. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.31; 1302.33; 1302.41; 1302.46; 1302.43 (d) (1-2); 1302.62 (a) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 1 

SUBJECT Home Visits/Parent Conferences 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
 

Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS) teachers must complete two Home Visits and no less than two Parent/Teacher 
Conferences each program year for center-based services. 

 
A system must be in place to ensure that completion dates of the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher 
Conferences are entered into Child Plus and meet the City of the San Antonio Benchmark Due Date 
Guide, the EHS File Scan Order and Process Guide, and applicable ChildPlus Data Entry Guide. 

 
Documentation of the Home Visit and Parent/Teacher Conference must be maintained in the child 
file and ChildPlus. If a Home Visit or Parent/Teacher Conference did not occur, documentation 
regarding why the event did not occur must be noted in Child Plus. 

 
The first Home Visit may be completed by the teacher no more than 14 calendar days prior to the 
first day of a child’s entry into the program. If a child enters the program after January 31st, a 
minimum of one home visit and one Parent/Teacher Conference must be completed by the last day 
of the program year. If a child’s date of entry is within 45 calendar days of the Parent/Teacher 
Conference benchmark due date, then the teacher must complete the Home Visit but is not required 
to complete both the Home Visit and the Parent Conference. 
 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences cannot be conducted on the same date.  Dates 
should be scheduled at intervals to allow for student growth, progress, and meaningful 
conversations. 

 

Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences will be conducted in the family’s home language and, 
when necessary, using the services of an interpreter. The Home Visits and Parent/Teacher 
Conferences should be scheduled at the parent’s convenience and completed in the home or at a 
mutually agreed upon location, upon parent/guardian’s request. 

Formatted: Body Text, Justified, Indent: Left:  0.13",
Right:  0.22", Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"



14  

Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences offer opportunities for parents/guardians and staff to 
share knowledge related to the strengths, needs, interests, goals, and concerns of the child and 
program activities. During the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences the teacher will share 
work samples, educational assessment outcomes, screening information, and information regarding 
the transition into a PreK/Head Start program, when applicable. 



15  

Service Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure that the information shared at 
the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences is documented. 

 
Performance Standard: 
302.34 (b) (2-3, 7-8); 1302.46; 1302.50; 1302.71 (a,b,e) 



13  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 1 

SUBJECT Home Visits/Parent Conferences 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
 

Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS) teachers must complete two Home Visits and   two Parent/Teacher Conferences 
each program year for center-based services. 

 
A system must be in place to ensure that completion dates of the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher 
Conferences are entered into Child Plus and meet the City of the San Antonio Benchmark Due 
Date Guide, the EHS File Scan Order and Process Guide, and applicable ChildPlus Data Entry Guide. 

 
Documentation of the Home Visit and Parent/Teacher Conference must be maintained in the child 
file and ChildPlus. If a Home Visit or Parent/Teacher Conference did not occur, documentation 
regarding why the event did not occur must be noted in Child Plus. 

 
The first Home Visit may be completed by the teacher no more than 14 calendar days prior to the 
first day of a child’s entry into the program. If a child enters the program after January 31st, a 
minimum of one home visit and one Parent/Teacher Conference must be completed by the last day 
of the program year. If a child’s date of entry is within 45 calendar days of the Parent/Teacher 
Conference benchmark due date, then the teacher must complete the Home Visit but is not required 
to complete both the Home Visit and the Parent Conference. 
 
Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences cannot be conducted on the same date.  Dates 
should be scheduled at intervals to allow for student growth, progress, and meaningful 
conversations. 

 

Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences will be conducted in the family’s home language and, 
when necessary, using the services of an interpreter. The Home Visits and Parent/Teacher 
Conferences should be scheduled at the parent’s convenience and completed in the home or at a 
mutually agreed upon location, upon parent/guardian’s request. 



14  

Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences offer opportunities for parents/guardians and staff to 
share knowledge related to the strengths, needs, interests, goals, and concerns of the child and 
program activities. During the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences the teacher will share 
work samples, educational assessment outcomes, screening information, and information regarding 
the transition into a PreK/Head Start program, when applicable. 
 
Service Providers will develop and implement procedures to ensure that the information shared at 
the Home Visits and Parent/Teacher Conferences is documented. 

 
Performance Standard: 
302.34 (b) (2-3, 7-8); 1302.46; 1302.50; 1302.71 (a,b,e) 

 



25  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 11 

SUBJECT Discipline and Guidance 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 

Policy: 
Service Providers must establish discipline and guidance policies and procedures appropriate for 
infants and toddlers. A copy must be provided to all parents/guardians, staff, volunteers, substitute 
floaterfloaters,/teachers, and contractors. Documentation must be maintained showing receipt of 
the written discipline and guidance policies. Service Providers must ensure a signed copy of the 
Education 11 Discipline and Guidance policy is maintained in all employees, volunteer volunteers, 
home visitorvisitors, and substitutes, floaters,/teachers files. 

 
The policies and procedures must include positive methods of discipline and guidance that build 
self-esteem and support self-control and self-regulation such as: 

 
• Praise and encouragement of developmentally appropriate behavior instead of 

focusing only on the unacceptable behavior 
• Frequent reminders of behavior expectations using clear and positive statements 
• Redirection of behavior using positive statements 

 
Discipline must be constructive, individualized, and consistent for each child, appropriate to the child’s 
level of understanding, and directed toward teaching the child appropriate behavior. Service Provider 
must prohibit or severallyely limit the use of suspension due to a child’s behavior. Service Provider 
must not expel or un-enroll a child from Head Start due to a child’s behavior, unless approved by the 
Head Start Administrator. 

The policies and procedures must also include guidance on appropriate communication with 
parents/guardians regarding a child’s behavior.  

 
When appropriate for the child’s age and development, a brief supervised separation or time away 
from the group may be necessary and should be limited to no more than one minute per year of the 
child’s age. There must be no harsh, cruel or unusual treatment of any child. The following examples 
are prohibited: 

• Corporal punishment or threats of corporal punishment 
• Punishment associated with food, naps, toilet training 



26  

• Pinching, shaking, or biting a child 

• Hitting a child with hand or an object 
• Putting anything in or on a child’s mouth 
• Humiliating, ridiculing, rejecting, or yelling at a child 
• Pointing a finger in a child’s face 
• Snapping fingers at a child 
• Use of isolation to discipline a child 
• Binding or tying a child to restrict movement 
• Threatening phrases/tone or sarcastic language/tone 
• Threatening to call a child’s parent/guardian related to behavior 
• Subjecting a child to harsh, abusive, or profane language 
• Placing a child in a locked or dark room, bathroom, or closet with the door closed 
• Requiring a child to remain silent or inactive for inappropriately long periods of time for 

the child’s age including requiring a child to remain in a restrictive device 
• Child restraint performed by staff not certified in proper restraint procedures 
• Withholding outdoor free play 
• Requiring a parent/guardian to pick up a child due to misbehavior 

 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.17; 1302.90 (c); 1302.31 (e) (2-4) 



25  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

EDUCATION 11 

SUBJECT Discipline and Guidance 

REFERENCE Education and Early Childhood Development 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 

Policy: 
Service Providers must establish discipline and guidance policies and procedures appropriate for 
infants and toddlers. A copy must be provided to all parents/guardians, staff, volunteers, substitute 
floaters, teachers, and contractors. Documentation must be maintained showing receipt of the 
written discipline and guidance policies. Service Providers must ensure a signed copy of the 
Education 11 Discipline and Guidance policy is maintained in all employees, volunteers, home 
visitors, and substitutes, floaters, teacher's files. 

 
The policies and procedures must include positive methods of discipline and guidance that build 
self-esteem and support self-control and self-regulation such as: 

 
• Praise and encouragement of developmentally appropriate behavior instead of focusing only on the 

unacceptable behavior 
• Frequent reminders of behavior expectations using clear and positive statements 
• Redirection of behavior using positive statements 

 
Discipline must be constructive, individualized, and consistent for each child, appropriate to the child’s 
level of understanding, and directed toward teaching the child appropriate behavior. Service Provider 
must prohibit or severely limit the use of suspension due to a child’s behavior. Service Provider must 
not expel or un-enroll a child from Head Start due to a child’s behavior, unless approved by the Head 
Start Administrator. 

The policies and procedures must also include guidance on appropriate communication with 
parents/guardians regarding a child’s behavior.  

 
When appropriate for the child’s age and development, a brief supervised separation or time away 
from the group may be necessary and should be limited to no more than one minute per year of the 
child’s age. There must be no harsh, cruel or unusual treatment of any child. The following examples 
are prohibited: 
 

• Corporal punishment or threats of corporal punishment 



26  

• Punishment associated with food, naps, toilet training 
• Pinching, shaking, or biting a child 
• Hitting a child with hand or an object 
• Putting anything in or on a child’s mouth 
• Humiliating, ridiculing, rejecting, or yelling at a child 
• Pointing a finger in a child’s face 
• Snapping fingers at a child 
• Use of isolation to discipline a child 
• Binding or tying a child to restrict movement 
• Threatening phrases/tone or sarcastic language/tone 
• Threatening to call a child’s parent/guardian related to behavior 
• Subjecting a child to harsh, abusive, or profane language 
• Placing a child in a locked or dark room, bathroom, or closet with the door closed 
• Requiring a child to remain silent or inactive for inappropriately long periods of time 

for the child’s age including requiring a child to remain in a restrictive device 
• Child restraint performed by staff not certified in proper restraint procedures 
• Withholding outdoor free play 
• Requiring a parent/guardian to pick up a child due to misbehavior 

 

Performance Standard(s): 
  1302.17; 1302.90 (c); 1302.31 (e) (2-4) 

 



56  

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 2 

SUBJECT Staffing and Class and Group Size Requirements 

REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS) Program, Service Providers will ensure that EHS classes are designed with no 
more than eight children and staffed by two paid teachers. It is recommended, whenever possible, 
that a third person be in the classroom, such as a volunteer. 
 
The Early Head Start classroom sizes are determined based on square footage, with a minimum of 
35 square feet per child indoor and 75 square feet per child for outdoor with no more than 8 
children to a classroom.  

Classroom Design 
 

Ages Classroom Design 
6 Wks -36 Months All EHS classrooms, by design, will have no more than eight 

children enrolled per class. The integration of EHS enrolled 
children and non EHS children per classroom is 
encouraged. 

Group Size 
 

Ages Group Size 
6 Wks -36 Months Maximum of eight children enrolled per class. Two teachers 

with no more than eight children. Two teachers must be in the 
classroom at all times. 

Ratios 
 

Ages Ratios 
6 Wks -36 Months One teacher to four children with two teachers in the 

classroom at all times. 

Class sizes are determined based on square footage, with a minimum of 35 square feet/child. 



57  

Service Providers must seek prior approval before any change to a classroom age group 
designation. As children age throughout the program, they may remain in their current classrooms 
until room becomes available in the next age-appropriate classroom. 



58  

Classroom management entails both teachers meeting the needs of all children. However, Service 
Providers must ensure that each teacher working exclusively with infants and toddlers has the 
responsibility for no more than four infants and toddlers when meeting home visits, 
parent/teacher conference expectations and developmental needs of the children. All EHS sites 
must comply with the above stated staffing, group and class size requirements. 
 
Ratios must be maintained during EHS hours. Program hours vary by site and are set and approved 
at the beginning of the program year as part of the EHS Program Design.  
 
In extreme emergencies, should a center become short staffed and unable to meet the EHS ratios 
and group size, they must follow the Texas Child Care Regulation Minimum Standards and seek 
approval from DHS EHS Senior Management. This practice is the exception and not the norm. 
Centers must report when being understaffed. 

 
Ratios must be maintained during EHS hours. Program hours vary by site and are set and approved 
at the beginning of the program year as part of the EHS Program Design. 

Volunteers being counted in classroom ratios 

A volunteer may be used to supplement the required adult/child ratio only for short periods of 
time, 10-15 minutes to accommodate for unscheduled interruptions/emergencies. Volunteers may 
be used to supplement for restroom breaks, children’s needs, and to cover lunch hours as long as a 
qualified EHS teacher is in the classroom. A volunteer must never be left alone with a child or 
group of children and must always remain with a qualified EHS teacher. All volunteers must sign 
the Head Start Standards of Conduct, pass a background check, and receive volunteer training. 
Providers must keep documentation of volunteer training and comply with the Texas Health and 
Human Services Commission Child-Care Regulations. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.21(b)(1)(2); 1302.94(a)(b) 



56  

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 2 

SUBJECT Class and Group Size Requirements 

REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
The Early Head Start classroom sizes are determined based on square footage, with a minimum of 
35 square feet per child indoor and 75 square feet per child for outdoor with no more than 8 
children to a classroom. Classroom Design 

 
Ages Classroom Design 
6 Wks -36 Months All EHS classrooms, by design, will have no more than eight 

children enrolled per class. The integration of EHS enrolled 
children and non EHS children per classroom is 
encouraged. 

Group Size 
 

Ages Group Size 
6 Wks -36 Months Maximum of eight children enrolled per class. Two teachers 

with no more than eight children. Two teachers must be in the 
classroom at all times. 

Ratios 
 

Ages Ratios 
6 Wks -36 Months One teacher to four children with two teachers in the 

classroom at all times. 

Service Providers must seek prior approval before any change to a classroom age group 
designation. As children age throughout the program, they may remain in their current classrooms 
until room becomes available in the next age-appropriate classroom. 

 
Performance Standard(s): 

 1302.21(b)(1)(2); 1302.94(a)(b)



56  

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 82 

SUBJECT Staffing and Supervisionand Class Size Requirements 

REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS) Program, Service Providers will ensure that EHS classes are designed with no 
more than eight children and staffed by two paid teachers. It is recommended, whenever possible, 
that a third person be in the classroom, such as a volunteer. 

Classroom Design 
 

Ages Classroom Design 
6 Wks -36 Months All EHS classrooms, by design, will have no more than eight 

children enrolled per class. The integration of EHS enrolled 
children and non EHS children per classroom is 
encouraged. 

Group Size 
 

Ages Group Size 
6 Wks -36 Months Maximum of eight children enrolled per class. Two teachers 

with no more than eight children. Two teachers must be in the 
classroom at all times. 

Ratios 
 

Ages Ratios 
6 Wks -36 Months One teacher to four children with two teachers in the 

classroom at all times. 

Class sizes are determined based on square footage, with a minimum of 35 square feet/child. 
Service Providers must seek prior approval before any change to a classroom age group 
designation. As children age throughout the program, they may remain in their current classrooms 
until room becomes available in the next age-appropriate classroom. 



57  

Classroom management entails both teachers meeting the needs of all children. However, Service 
Providers must ensure that each teacher working exclusively with infants and toddlers has the 
responsibility for no more than four infants and toddlers when meeting home visits, parent/teacher 
conference expectations and developmental needs of the children. All EHS sites must comply with 
the above stated staffing, group and class size requirements. 
 
Ratios must be maintained during EHS hours. Program hours vary by site and are set and approved 
at the beginning of the program year as part of the EHS Program Design.  
 
In extreme emergencies, should a center become short staffed and unable to meet the EHS ratios 
and group size, they must follow the Texas Child Care Regulation Minimum Standards and seek 
approval from DHS EHS Senior Management. This practice is the exception and not the norm. 
Centers must report when being understaffed. 

 
Ratios must be maintained during EHS hours. Program hours vary by site and are set and approved 
at the beginning of the program year as part of the EHS Program Design. 
 
Service Providers will develop and implement active supervision procedures. No child will be left 
alone or unsupervised for any period of time.  

Volunteers being counted in classroom ratios 

A volunteer may be used to supplement the required adult/child ratio only for short periods of time, 
10-15 minutes to accommodate for unscheduled interruptions/emergencies. Volunteers may be 
used to supplement for restroom breaks, children’s needs, and to cover lunch hours as long as a 
qualified EHS teacher is in the classroom. A volunteer must never be left alone with a child or group 
of children and must always remain with a qualified EHS teacher. All volunteers must sign the Head 
Start Standards of Conduct, pass a background check, and receive volunteer training. Providers must 
keep documentation of volunteer training and comply with the Texas Health and Human Services 
Commission Child-Care Regulations. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 

1302.21(b)(1)(2); 1302.94(a)(b); 1302.47 (b){2){iii); 1302.47(b){S){i); 1302.47(b) (S){iii); 1302.94(b) 

 



56  

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 8 

SUBJECT Staffing and Supervision 

REFERENCE Environmental Health and Safety 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS) Program, Service Providers will ensure that EHS classes are designed with no 
more than eight children and staffed by two paid teachers. It is recommended, whenever possible, 
that a third person be in the classroom, such as a volunteer. 
 
Classroom management entails both teachers meeting the needs of all children. However, Service 
Providers must ensure that each teacher working exclusively with infants and toddlers has the 
responsibility for no more than four infants and toddlers when meeting home visits, 
parent/teacher conference expectations and developmental needs of the children. All EHS sites 
must comply with the above stated staffing, group and class size requirements. 
 
Ratios must be maintained during EHS hours. Program hours vary by site and are set and approved 
at the beginning of the program year as part of the EHS Program Design.  
 
In extreme emergencies, should a center become short staffed and unable to meet the EHS ratios 
and group size, they must follow the Texas Child Care Regulation Minimum Standards and seek 
approval from DHS EHS Senior Management. This practice is the exception and not the norm. 
Centers must report when being understaffed. 

 
Service Providers will develop and implement active supervision procedures. No child will be left 
alone or unsupervised for any period of time. Volunteers being counted in classroom ratios 

A volunteer may be used to supplement the required adult/child ratio only for short periods of 
time, 10-15 minutes to accommodate for unscheduled interruptions/emergencies. Volunteers may 
be used to supplement for restroom breaks, children’s needs, and to cover lunch hours as long as a 
qualified EHS teacher is in the classroom. A volunteer must never be left alone with a child or 
group of children and must always remain with a qualified EHS teacher. All volunteers must sign 
the Head Start Standards of Conduct, pass a background check, and receive volunteer training. 
Providers must keep documentation of volunteer training and comply with the Texas Health and 
Human Services Commission Child-Care Regulations. 



57  

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 

1302.21(b)(1)(2); 1302.94(a)(b); 1302.47 (b){2){iii); 1302.47(b){S){i); 1302.47(b) (S){iii); 1302.94(b) 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



   
 

   
 

 

 
DHS Early Head Start 

Program Policy 

 

 

HEALTH 
1 

SUBJECT Immunization Requirements 

REFERENCE Comprehensive Health Services 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 
7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 

Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS) Program Service Provider staff will ensure that all children are up to 
date with the current immunization recommendations issued by the C Texas Health and 
Human Serivces's   Minimum State Vaccine Requirements for Child-Care in accordance with 
the Texas Administrative Code (TAC), and ChildCare Regulations. If a center- based child is 
not up to date with minimum immunization requirements, the child may be excluded from 
attendance, but not unenrolled from the EHS Program. 
 
Immunization recommendations issued by the Center for Disease Control (CDC) will be 
considered based on prevalent community health problems.  

 
All immunization records received by EHS staff will be scanned into ChildPlus according to 
the EHS Program ChildPlus Scan Order and Process Guide and the applicable Child Plus Data 
Entry Guide. Current immunization records will be kept on file with the Service Provider. 

 
Staff will work with the family to ensure that the child is up to date with the recommended 
immunization schedule and will document all efforts and outcomes in Child Plus. 

 
Immunization Exemption: 
Chapter §97 Subchapter B of the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) describes the conditions 
under which individuals can seek exemptions from Texas immunization requirements. 
Exemption information and instructions can be obtained through the Texas Department of 
State Health Services. 



   
 

   
 

Once the State process for exemptions is completed, documentation will be attached in Child 
Plus and kept on file with the Service Provider. 

 
Performance Standard: 
1302.15(e) 
1302.42 
 

 
Reference: 
Texas Minimum State Vaccine Requirements for Child-Care and Pre-K Facilities,  
TAC 97 Immunization Requirements, CDC Immunization Schedule 

http://dshs.texas.gov/immunize/school/child-care-requirements.aspx


   
 

   
 

 

 
DHS Early Head Start 

Program Policy 

 

 

HEALTH 1 

SUBJECT Immunization Requirements 

REFERENCE Comprehensive Health Services 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 
7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 

Policy: 
Early Head Start (EHS) Program Service Provider staff will ensure that all children are up to 
date with the current immunization recommendations issued by the C Texas Health and 
Human Services Minimum State Vaccine Requirements for Child-Care in accordance with 
the Texas Administrative Code (TAC), and ChildCare Regulations. If a center- based child is 
not up to date with minimum immunization requirements, the child may be excluded from 
attendance, but not unenrolled from the EHS Program. 
 
Immunization recommendations issued by the Center for Disease Control (CDC) will be 
considered based on prevalent community health problems.  

 
All immunization records received by EHS staff will be scanned into ChildPlus according to 
the EHS Program ChildPlus Scan Order and Process Guide and the applicable Child Plus Data 
Entry Guide. Current immunization records will be kept on file with the Service Provider. 

 
Staff will work with the family to ensure that the child is up to date with the recommended 
immunization schedule and will document all efforts and outcomes in Child Plus. 

 
Immunization Exemption: 
Chapter §97 Subchapter B of the Texas Administrative Code (TAC) describes the conditions 
under which individuals can seek exemptions from Texas immunization requirements. 
Exemption information and instructions can be obtained through the Texas Department of 
State Health Services. 



   
 

   
 

Once the State process for exemptions is completed, documentation will be attached in Child 
Plus and kept on file with the Service Provider. 

 
Performance Standard: 
1302.15(e) 
1302.42 
 

 
Reference: 
Texas Minimum State Vaccine Requirements for Child-Care and Pre-K Facilities,  
TAC 97 Immunization Requirements, CDC Immunization Schedule 

http://dshs.texas.gov/immunize/school/child-care-requirements.aspx


 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

HOME-BASED 3 

SUBJECT Home Visitor’s Caseloads 

REFERENCE Home-Based Option 

EFFECTIVE 10/1/2020 

Policy Council 
Approval: 9/22/20 

Policy Council 
Revision: 9/22/20 

Governing Body 
Approval: 11/12/20 

Governing Body 
Revision: 11/12/20 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
The Early Head Start (EHS) Program Service Provider Home-based option must not exceed a caseload 
of 12 families 8 children for any individual the home visitor. 

 
 
Performance Standard: 
1302.22 (b) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

HOME-BASED 3 

SUBJECT Home Visitor’s Caseloads 

REFERENCE Home-Based Option 

EFFECTIVE 10/1/2020 

Policy Council 
Approval: 9/22/20 

Policy Council 
Revision: 9/22/20 

Governing Body 
Approval: 11/12/20 

Governing Body 
Revision: 11/12/20 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 
The Early Head Start (EHS) Program Service Provider Home-based option must not exceed a caseload 
of 8 children for the home visitor. 

 
 
Performance Standard: 
1302.22 (b) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96 



110  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 2 

SUBJECT Standards of Conduct 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/25/22 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 8/4/22 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 
The Head Start Program staff, including Early Head Start, substitutes, consultants, contractors, 
and volunteers must abide by the program’s Standards of Conduct that: 

 
a. Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers implement positive strategies to 

support children’s well-being and prevent and address challenging behavior; 

b. Ensure staff, including substitutes, consultants, contractors, and volunteers do not maltreat 
or endanger the health or safety of children, including, at a minimum, that staff must not: 

 
i. Use corporal punishment; 

ii. Use isolation to discipline a child; 
iii. Bind or tie a child to restrict movement or tape a child’s mouth; 
iv. Use or withhold food as a punishment or reward; 
v. Use toilet learning/training methods that punish, demean, or humiliate achild; 

vi. Use any form of emotional abuse, including public or private humiliation, rejecting, 
terrorizing, extended ignoring, or corrupting a child; 

vii. Physically abuse a child; 
viii. Use any form of verbal abuse, including profane, sarcastic language, threats, or 

derogatory remarks about the child or child’s family; or, 
ix. Use physical activity or outdoor time as a punishment or reward; 

c. Ensure staff, including substitutes, consultants, contractors, and volunteers respect and 
promote the unique identity of each child and family and do not stereotype on any basis, 
including gender, race, ethnicity, culture, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or family 
composition; 

c.d. Ensure the program’s Standards of Conduct are reviewed and signed by staff, including substitutes, 
consultant, contractors, and volunteers annually. Documentation must be maintained in all staff 
files.  

 



111  

d.e. Require staff, including substitutes, consultants, contractors, and volunteers to comply with 
program confidentiality policies concerning personally identifiable information (PII) about 
children, families, and other staff members in accordance with subpart C of part 1303 and 
applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws; and, 



112  

e.f. Ensure no child is left alone or unsupervised by staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers 
while under their care. 

Furthermore, all staff, consultants, contractors, volunteers, Head Start Policy Council members, and 
Advisory Committee members are required to sign a Standards of Conduct form. The Head Start 
Program will implement appropriate penalties including termination of staff, consultants, and 
volunteers who violate the Standards of Conduct. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.90(c)(1); 1303(C) 



  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 2 

SUBJECT Standards of Conduct 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/25/22 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 8/4/22 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 
Policy: 
The Head Start Program staff, including Early Head Start, substitutes, consultants, contractors, 
and volunteers must abide by the program’s Standards of Conduct that: 

 
a. Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers implement positive strategies to 

support children’s well-being and prevent and address challenging behavior; 

b. Ensure staff, including substitutes, consultants, contractors, and volunteers do not maltreat 
or endanger the health or safety of children, including, at a minimum, that staff must not: 

 
i. Use corporal punishment; 

ii. Use isolation to discipline a child; 
iii. Bind or tie a child to restrict movement or tape a child’s mouth; 
iv. Use or withhold food as a punishment or reward; 
v. Use toilet learning/training methods that punish, demean, or humiliate achild; 

vi. Use any form of emotional abuse, including public or private humiliation, rejecting, 
terrorizing, extended ignoring, or corrupting a child; 

vii. Physically abuse a child; 
viii. Use any form of verbal abuse, including profane, sarcastic language, threats, or 

derogatory remarks about the child or child’s family; or, 
ix. Use physical activity or outdoor time as a punishment or reward; 

c. Ensure staff, including substitutes, consultants, contractors, and volunteers respect and 
promote the unique identity of each child and family and do not stereotype on any basis, 
including gender, race, ethnicity, culture, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or family 
composition; 

d. Ensure the program’s Standards of Conduct are reviewed and signed by staff, including substitutes, 
consultant, contractors, and volunteers annually. Documentation must be maintained in all staff 
files.  

 



  

e. Require staff, including substitutes, consultants, contractors, and volunteers to comply with 
program confidentiality policies concerning personally identifiable information (PII) about 
children, families, and other staff members in accordance with subpart C of part 1303 and 
applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws; and 

 
f. Ensure no child is left alone or unsupervised by staff, consultants, contractors, or volunteers 

while under their care. 

Furthermore, all staff, consultants, contractors, volunteers, Head Start Policy Council members, 
and Advisory Committee members are required to sign a Standards of Conduct form. The Head 
Start Program will implement appropriate penalties including termination of staff, consultants, 
and volunteers who violate the Standards of Conduct. 

 
 
Performance Standard(s): 
1302.90(c)(1); 1303(C) 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 9 

SUBJECT Critical Incident Reporting 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS) must develop and implement a system 
for Critical Incident Reporting (CIR). All staff must be trained on incident reporting. 

 
A critical incident includes, but is not limited to: 

 
• Suspected child abuse/neglect which may or may not have occurred during service hours. 

•  
• Allegations of child abuse/neglect or maltreatment against any EHS staff member, 

volunteer, consultant and contractor, including, but not limited to grabbing, shoving, 
shaking, swatting, or dragging a child; spanking or any other type of corporal or physical 
punishment; binding tying, or taping a child; terrorizing a child with threats or menacing 
acts; or any form of sexual contact. 

•  
• Incidents which may have placed a child, family member or staff in danger. 

•  
• Any incident where a child is left unsupervised while in the care or under the 

supervision of program staff, which includes leaving a child alone anywhere on the 
grounds of an EHS center (e.g., in a classroom, bathroom, on a playground), as well as 
outside the facility in a parking lot, or on a nearby street. 

•  
• Any incident that involves a classroom that is out of ratio.  . Any situation that involves a 

classroom out of ratio must be reported.. 
 

• Inappropriate discipline, which is any type of conduct used to instill fear or humiliate  
rather than to educate a child, such as poking or pinching a child; making fun of or laughing 
about a child; using/withholding food or an activity as a punishment or reward; or isolating  
a child. 

•  
• Health incidents and illnesses, which include, but are not limited to: 

o Injuries that require urgent medical attention by a health-care 

Formatted: Normal, Justified,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Justified,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Justified,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Justified,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering



professional, such as a broken bone; a severe sprain; chipped or cracked 
teeth; head trauma; deep cuts; contusions or lacerations; or animal bites. 

o Child or staff member leaving by emergency medical transport 
o•  Any reportable disease/illness, as indicated by the Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention, State of Texas, State of Texas Child Care Regulations, or the City of San 
Antonio Metro Health Department  
o Child receiving outside medical attention at any point in time for an injury 

sustained during EHS program hours 

Formatted



• Unauthorized release where a child is released from an EHS center to a person without the 
permission or authorization of a parent or legal guardian and whose identity had not been 
verified by photo identification. 

•  
• Any incident which has the potential to generate negative media coverage 
•  

• Any media inquiry/coverage of the program 
•  

• Unplanned interruption in EHS Program services 
•  

• Closure of any facility or part of a facility, including outdoor play areas 
•  

• Accidents involving vehicles that transport children and families 
•  

When applicable, parents/guardians must be notified of critical incidents within 24 hours of 
occurrence. Providers must also provide notification to the EHS Senior Special Projects Manager or 
designee within 24 hours. 

Performance Standard(s): 
1302.47(c); 1302.102(d)(1)(ii); 1304.12; 1303.79(b)(3) 

Information Memorandum: 
 ACF-IM-HS-22-07 

Formatted: Line spacing:  Double

Formatted: Line spacing:  Double

Formatted: Line spacing:  Double

Formatted: Line spacing:  Double

Formatted: Line spacing:  Double



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 9 

SUBJECT Critical Incident Reporting 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS) must develop and implement a system 
for Critical Incident Reporting (CIR). All staff must be trained on incident reporting. 

 
A critical incident includes, but is not limited to: 

 
• Suspected child abuse/neglect which may or may not have occurred during service hours. 

 
• Allegations of child abuse/neglect or maltreatment against any EHS staff member, 

volunteer, consultant and contractor, including, but not limited to grabbing, shoving, 
shaking, swatting, or dragging a child; spanking or any other type of corporal or physical 
punishment; binding tying, or taping a child; terrorizing a child with threats or menacing 
acts; or any form of sexual contact. 

 
• Incidents which may have placed a child, family member or staff in danger. 

 
• Any incident where a child is left unsupervised while in the care or under the 

supervision of program staff, which includes leaving a child alone anywhere on the 
grounds of an EHS center (e.g., in a classroom, bathroom, on a playground), as well as 
outside the facility in a parking lot, or on a nearby street. 

 
• Any incident that involves a classroom that is out of ratio.  Any situation that involves a 

classroom out of ratio must be reported. 
 

• Inappropriate discipline, which is any type of conduct used to instill fear or humiliate  
rather than to educate a child, such as poking or pinching a child; making fun of or laughing 
about a child; using/withholding food or an activity as a punishment or reward; or isolating  
a child. 

 
 

 



• Health incidents and illnesses, which include, but are not limited to: 
o Injuries that require urgent medical attention by a health-care 

professional, such as a broken bone; a severe sprain; chipped or cracked 
teeth; head trauma; deep cuts; contusions or lacerations; or animal bites. 

o Child or staff member leaving by emergency medical transport 
 

• Any reportable disease/illness, as indicated by the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, State of Texas, State of Texas Child Care Regulations, or the City of San 
Antonio Metro Health Department  
o Child receiving outside medical attention at any point in time for an injury 

sustained during EHS program hours 
 

• Unauthorized release where a child is released from an EHS center to a person without the 
permission or authorization of a parent or legal guardian and whose identity had not been 
verified by photo identification. 
 

• Any incident which has the potential to generate negative media coverage 
 

• Any media inquiry/coverage of the program 
 

• Unplanned interruption in EHS Program services 
 

• Closure of any facility or part of a facility, including outdoor play areas 
 

• Accidents involving vehicles that transport children and families 
 

When applicable, parents/guardians must be notified of critical incidents within 24 hours of 
occurrence. Providers must also provide notification to the EHS Senior Special Projects Manager or 
designee within 24 hours. 

Performance Standard(s): 
1302.47(c); 1302.102(d)(1)(ii); 1304.12; 1303.79(b)(3) 

Information Memorandum: 
 ACF-IM-HS-22-07



124  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 10 

SUBJECT Personnel 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/28/20 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 8/13/20 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS), and Education Service Providers will abide 
by their internal agency personnel policies and procedures which must meet or exceed applicable 
requirements including Head Start regulations as well as local, state, and federal laws. 

 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program personnel policies must be approved by the Governing 
Board, or the designated Advisory Committee, and Policy Council and must be available to all staff. 
The Head Start Policy Council will approve decisions regarding the employment of program staff as 
stated in paragraph 1(E)(iv)(IX), regarding the hiring, evaluation, compensation, and termination of 
the Executive Director, Head Start Director, and any other person in an equivalent position within 
the Head Start Program. 

 
The Head Start Program collaborates with the City of San Antonio’s Human Resources Department 
to ensure all newly hired City staff complete the required criminal background checks prior to 
employment. According to the City of San Antonio’s Administrative Directive (AD) 4.55, the City 
conducts Criminal Background Checks (CBC) as part of the initial employment process and applies to 
volunteers and interns. 

Head Start Program and Education Service Provider Background Check Requirements: 
 

a. Before a person is hired, directly or through a contract, including transportation staff and 
contractors, the Head Start Program and Education Service Providers must conduct an 
interview, verify references, conduct a sex offender registry check and obtain one of the 
following: 

 
i. State or tribal criminal history records, including fingerprint checks; or, 

ii. Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including fingerprint checks. 



125  

b. A program has 90 days after an employee is hired to complete the background check process by 
obtaining: 

 
i. Whichever check listed in paragraph (a) of this section was not obtained prior 

to the date of hire; and, 
ii. Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if available. 

c. A program must review the information found in each employment application and 
complete background check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete 
background check. 

 
d. A program must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, or contractor does not 

have unsupervised access to children until the background check process is 
complete. 

 
e. A program must conduct the complete background check for each employee, consultant, 

or contractor at least once every five years and must include each of the four checks listed 
above. 

 
f. A program must provide new hire(s) start date, criminal background check date and 

teaching credentials to the assigned DHS Early Head Start staff member according to the 
City of the San Antonio Benchmark Due Date Guide.  

e.  
 

Staff who has direct contact with children will abide by Department of Health and Human Services 
Commission Child Care Regulation requirements, whichever is most stringent. 

 
The Head Start Program will consider current and former program parents for employment 
vacancies for which such parents apply and are qualified. 

 
 

Performance Standard(s): 
1302.90(a-b) 

Head Start Act: 
642(c)(1)(E)(iv)(V)(cc); 642(c)(1)(E)(IX); 642(c)(2)(D)(vi) 

 
City of San Antonio Administrative Directive (AD): 
4.55 Background Checks/Reporting Arrests, Indictments and Convictions 

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering



124  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 10 

SUBJECT Personnel 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 7/28/20 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 8/13/20 

PAGE: 1 of 2 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS), and Education Service Providers will abide 
by their internal agency personnel policies and procedures which must meet or exceed applicable 
requirements including Head Start regulations as well as local, state, and federal laws. 

 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program personnel policies must be approved by the Governing 
Board, or the designated Advisory Committee, and Policy Council and must be available to all staff. 
The Head Start Policy Council will approve decisions regarding the employment of program staff as 
stated in paragraph 1(E)(iv)(IX), regarding the hiring, evaluation, compensation, and termination of 
the Executive Director, Head Start Director, and any other person in an equivalent position within 
the Head Start Program. 

 
The Head Start Program collaborates with the City of San Antonio’s Human Resources Department 
to ensure all newly hired City staff complete the required criminal background checks prior to 
employment. According to the City of San Antonio’s Administrative Directive (AD) 4.55, the City 
conducts Criminal Background Checks (CBC) as part of the initial employment process and applies to 
volunteers and interns. 

Head Start Program and Education Service Provider Background Check Requirements: 
 

a. Before a person is hired, directly or through a contract, including transportation staff and 
contractors, the Head Start Program and Education Service Providers must conduct an 
interview, verify references, conduct a sex offender registry check and obtain one of the 
following: 

 
i. State or tribal criminal history records, including fingerprint checks; or, 

ii. Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including fingerprint checks. 



125  

b. A program has 90 days after an employee is hired to complete the background check process by 
obtaining: 

 
i. Whichever check listed in paragraph (a) of this section was not obtained prior 

to the date of hire; and, 
ii. Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if available. 

c. A program must review the information found in each employment application and 
complete background check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete 
background check. 

 
d. A program must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, or contractor does not 

have unsupervised access to children until the background check process is 
complete. 

 
e. A program must conduct the complete background check for each employee, consultant, 

or contractor at least once every five years and must include each of the four checks listed 
above. 

 
f. A program must provide new hire(s) start date, criminal background check date and 

teaching credentials to the assigned DHS Early Head Start staff member according to the 
City of the San Antonio Benchmark Due Date Guide.  

 
 

Staff who has direct contact with children will abide by Department of Health and Human Services 
Commission Child Care Regulation requirements, whichever is most stringent. 

 
The Head Start Program will consider current and former program parents for employment 
vacancies for which such parents apply and are qualified. 

 
 

Performance Standard(s): 
1302.90(a-b) 

Head Start Act: 
642(c)(1)(E)(iv)(V)(cc); 642(c)(1)(E)(IX); 642(c)(2)(D)(vi) 

 
City of San Antonio Administrative Directive (AD): 
4.55 Background Checks/Reporting Arrests, Indictments and Convictions 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 11 

SUBJECT Program Governance 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 4/23/19 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/23/19 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS), has established a formal structure for 
program governance that includes the City of San Antonio City Council as the Governing Body, and 
the Head Start Policy Council. City Council has the legal and fiscal responsibility to administer and 
oversee the Head Start and Early Head Start programs and has authorized a subcommittee to 
oversee key responsibilities related to program governance and improvements of the Head Start 
programs. The Head Start Policy Council allows for parent participation in policy making and other 
decisions about the program, as required by the Head Start Program Performance Standards and 
Section 642 (c) of the Head Start act. 
 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program will develop and implement procedures related to 
information reported to the Head Start Policy Council (HSPC) and program governance advisory 
committees.  

 
In addition, the Head Start Program will establish parent committees exclusively of parents of 
currently enrolled children to advise staff and communicate with the Policy Council. 

 
Performance Standard: 
1301 

Head Start Act: 
Sec. 642(c)(1)(E)(iv)(XI) and Sec. 642 (c) (2) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 11 

SUBJECT Program Governance 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 8/1/2016 

Policy Council 
Approval: 7/26/16 

Policy Council 
Revision: 4/23/19 

Governing Body 
Approval: 9/19/16 

Governing Body 
Revision: 5/23/19 

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS), has established a formal structure for 
program governance that includes the City of San Antonio City Council as the Governing Body, and 
the Head Start Policy Council. City Council has the legal and fiscal responsibility to administer and 
oversee the Head Start and Early Head Start programs and has authorized a subcommittee to 
oversee key responsibilities related to program governance and improvements of the Head Start 
programs. The Head Start Policy Council allows for parent participation in policy making and other 
decisions about the program, as required by the Head Start Program Performance Standards and 
Section 642 (c) of the Head Start act. 
 
The City of San Antonio Head Start Program will develop and implement procedures related to 
information reported to the Head Start Policy Council (HSPC) and program governance advisory 
committees.  

 
In addition, the Head Start Program will establish parent committees exclusively of parents of 
currently enrolled children to advise staff and communicate with the Policy Council. 

 
Performance Standard: 
1301 

Head Start Act: 
Sec. 642(c)(1)(E)(iv)(XI) and Sec. 642 (c) (2) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



134  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 18 

SUBJECT Program Data – Access and Security 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 4/23/18 

Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 3 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS), must establish an internal procedure for 
proper access and security of program data for the City of San Antonio Department of Human Services 
Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 
DHS Head Start utilizes ChildPlus as the secure database system for storing and tracking client 
information. 

 
All user account holders are required to complete ChildPlus Access Request and ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement forms. Upon completion, the forms are scanned and attached 
by the ChildPlus Administrator in ChildPlus under each respective user profile. 

 
By accessing the database, staff understands and agrees to abide by all terms of the ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement and any applicable state and federal laws regarding Personally 
Identifiable Information (PII) and Protected Health Information (PHI). 

 
• Education Service Providers are required to designate a staff member to complete the 

Personnel Profile for all staff members funded by the Head Start or EHS grant or anyone 
who works with children or families enrolled in the Head Start or EHS programs under the 
Management Module in ChildPlus. Designated staff is defined as preauthorized users in the 
Management/Personnel Module. 

• Upon completion of the Personnel Profile, the designee will notify the ChildPlus 
Administrator if the user requires access to PII. Not all personnel require a ChildPlus user 
account. 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will confirm with the designee the role of personnel and the 
types of access required. 



135  

• The ChildPlus Administrator will complete a User Security profile in ChildPlus, assign a login 
username and temporary password, restrict access by location, and designate User 
Security group(s). 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will email the new account holder the login username and 
temporary password. 

• The new account holder will log into ChildPlus and change the temporary password to a 
permanent password. 

 
Authorized ChildPlus users are granted access under one of the following groupings: 

 
• Staff: 

o A ChildPlus personnel account will be created for all staff. ChildPlus user 
accounts and access is granted upon the approval of the ChildPlus Access 
Request Form and the completion of the ChildPlus User Security and 
Confidentiality Agreement Form. 

 
• Education Service Providers: 

o An assigned ChildPlus Super User for each Service Provider formally requests 
accounts via email for Service Provider Head Start Staff. Service providers are 
subject to the confidentiality provisions under the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act (FERPA). 

 
• Contracted Providers: 

o A Special Projects Manager or designee will request user accounts for 
contractual providers via email or meeting with the ChildPlus Administrator. To 
meet the requirements of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
of 1996 (HIPPA), DHS Head Start requires any contract that include access to 
client information include an enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA). 
BAAs are documented in the professional services contract with the DHS Head 
Start. 

Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems that maintain 
electronic PII, PHI, and IDEA Part B and C to allow access only to those persons or software programs 
that have been granted access rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard HIPAA, FERPA, 
PHI, PII, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) part B and C data and information 
from unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII and IDEA part B and C 
electronically must follow encryption guidelines and ensure the receiving entity is an authorized 
recipient of the specific data being delivered. 

 
To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to HIPAA, FERPA, and 
the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data, program staff should utilize a 
child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials when communicating via email, TEAMS, or other 
electronic messaging system.    
 

Formatted: Body Text, Justified, Right:  0.16"

Formatted: Space Before:  0.6 pt



136  

Staff may request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain PHI or PII via the secure 
ChildPlus Request Document feature.    



137  

Staff may utilize a program issued computer or device to access ChildPlus. 
 

Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure, should include the use of 
privacy screen filters, and that only authorized persons are within viewing distance of the 
authorized user’s screen and/or confidential documents. 

 
All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum timeout of 
15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when leaving their desk 
(Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL). 

 
Disclosure of ChildPlus information to a contractor is authorized but ONLY when an 
enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA) is in place. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings: 

• CoSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPPA Training 

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San Antonio Human 
Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance Team. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must review and acknowledge the review and acceptance of CoSA 
Administrative Directives that include Data Security and Use of Technology. 

Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures to ensure all 
staff comply with this procedure and ensure all staff receive training on safeguarding FERPA, HIPAA, 
PHI, PII and (IDEA) part B and C data. 

 
 

Performance Standards: 
1302.101(b)(4) 



  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 18 

SUBJECT Program Data – Access and Security 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 4/23/18 

Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 3 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start (EHS), must establish an internal procedure for 
proper access and security of program data for the City of San Antonio Department of Human Services 
Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 
DHS Head Start utilizes ChildPlus as the secure database system for storing and tracking client 
information. 

 
All user account holders are required to complete ChildPlus Access Request and ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement forms. Upon completion, the forms are scanned and attached 
by the ChildPlus Administrator in ChildPlus under each respective user profile. 

 
By accessing the database, staff understands and agrees to abide by all terms of the ChildPlus User 
Security and Confidentiality Agreement and any applicable state and federal laws regarding Personally 
Identifiable Information (PII) and Protected Health Information (PHI). 

 
• Education Service Providers are required to designate a staff member to complete the 

Personnel Profile for all staff members funded by the Head Start or EHS grant or anyone 
who works with children or families enrolled in the Head Start or EHS programs under the 
Management Module in ChildPlus. Designated staff is defined as preauthorized users in the 
Management/Personnel Module. 

• Upon completion of the Personnel Profile, the designee will notify the ChildPlus 
Administrator if the user requires access to PII. Not all personnel require a ChildPlus user 
account. 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will confirm with the designee the role of personnel and the 
types of access required. 



  

• The ChildPlus Administrator will complete a User Security profile in ChildPlus, assign a login 
username and temporary password, restrict access by location, and designate User 
Security group(s). 

• The ChildPlus Administrator will email the new account holder the login username and 
temporary password. 

• The new account holder will log into ChildPlus and change the temporary password to a 
permanent password. 

 
Authorized ChildPlus users are granted access under one of the following groupings: 

 
• Staff: 

o A ChildPlus personnel account will be created for all staff. ChildPlus user 
accounts and access is granted upon the approval of the ChildPlus Access 
Request Form and the completion of the ChildPlus User Security and 
Confidentiality Agreement Form. 

 
• Education Service Providers: 

o An assigned ChildPlus Super User for each Service Provider formally requests 
accounts via email for Service Provider Head Start Staff. Service providers are 
subject to the confidentiality provisions under the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act (FERPA). 

 
• Contracted Providers: 

o A Special Projects Manager or designee will request user accounts for 
contractual providers via email or meeting with the ChildPlus Administrator. To 
meet the requirements of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
of 1996 (HIPPA), DHS Head Start requires any contract that include access to 
client information include an enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA). 
BAAs are documented in the professional services contract with the DHS Head 
Start. 

Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems that maintain 
electronic PII, PHI, and IDEA Part B and C to allow access only to those persons or software programs 
that have been granted access rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard HIPAA, FERPA, 
PHI, PII, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) part B and C data and information 
from unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII and IDEA part B and C 
electronically must follow encryption guidelines and ensure the receiving entity is an authorized 
recipient of the specific data being delivered. 

 
To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to HIPAA, FERPA, 
and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C data, program staff should 
utilize a child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials when communicating via email, TEAMS, 
or other electronic messaging system.    

 



  

Staff may request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain PHI or PII via the secure 
ChildPlus Request Document feature.    

 
 

Staff may utilize a program issued computer or device to access ChildPlus. 
 

Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure, should include the use of 
privacy screen filters, and that only authorized persons are within viewing distance of the 
authorized user’s screen and/or confidential documents. 

 
All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum timeout of 
15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when leaving their desk 
(Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL). 

 
Disclosure of ChildPlus information to a contractor is authorized but ONLY when an 
enforceable Business Associate Agreement (BAA) is in place. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings: 

• CoSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPPA Training 

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San Antonio Human 
Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance Team. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff must review and acknowledge the review and acceptance of CoSA 
Administrative Directives that include Data Security and Use of Technology. 

Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures to ensure all 
staff comply with this procedure and ensure all staff receive training on safeguarding FERPA, HIPAA, 
PHI, PII and (IDEA) part B and C data. 

 
 

Performance Standards: 
1302.101(b)(4) 



137  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 19 

SUBJECT Management of Program Data 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 4/23/18 

Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 3 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start, must establish an internal procedure 
for proper management of program data for the City of San Antonio Department of 
Human Services Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 
Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems 
that maintain electronic Personal Identifiable Information (PII), Protected Health 
Information (PHI), and Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C to 
allow access only to those persons or software programs that have been granted access 
rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), PHI, PII, and the IDEA Part B and C related data and 
information from unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII 
and IDEA Part B and C information electronically must ensure the receiving entity is an 
authorized recipient of the specific data being delivered. 

 
• Only computers and/or devices configured by the Information 

Technology (IT) Department for use on the CoSA network or Education 
Service Provider network are authorized for the storage or transport of 
PHI, PII and/or IDEA Part B and C data. 

• Staff may utilize a program issued device to access systems to view 
and maintain PHI, PII, and IDEA Part B and C files. 

• Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure 
and only authorized persons are within viewing distance of the 
authorized user’s screen and staff should use a privacy screen for all 
monitors and laptop screens. 



138  

• Disclosure of PII and/or PHI, and/or IDEA Part B and C to a contractor is 
authorized but ONLY when an enforceable Business Associate 
Agreement (BAA) is in place. 

• Personal devices shall not be used to store or transmit unencrypted 
protected data. 

• Any removable media or storage devices used to transfer PHI, PII, and/or 
IDEA Part B and C data must be encrypted. 

• All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum 
timeout of 15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when 
leaving their desk (Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL).  

• If any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data is transmitted via email, the email must 
be encrypted 

• To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to 
HIPAA, FERPA, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C 
data, program staff should utilize a child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials.   

• Hard copies (i.e., paper) of any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data must be kept 
secured in a lockable file cabinet or other secured storage. 

• In the event that PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data, either hard copy or electronic, 
are transported between locations, staff must take all precautions to ensure the 
materials remain secure and must remain in the presence of staff at all times. 

• Staff should not request PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data via text or email. Staff 
may request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain this information via 
the secure ChildPlus Request Document feature.   

 

 
Facsimiles 

• Any documents received via facsimile, either telefax or online, that contain PHI, 
PII and/or IDEA Part B and C data shall be uploaded or scanned into appropriate 
software (i.e., ChildPlus) as soon as possible. Any electronic copies of the 
facsimile should be saved to the user’s desktop; once the upload is completed 
the file should be deleted and the deletion confirmed. Any hardcopies of the 
facsimile must be stored in a secure location or destroyed. 

• Any hardcopies of the documents sent via facsimile, either telefax or online, 
that contain PHI, PII and/or IDEA Part B and C data shall be either stored in a secure 
location or destroyed. 

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering



139  

 
All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings: 

 
• CoSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPAA Training 

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San 
Antonio Human Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance 
Team. 

All DHS Head Start staff t review and acknowledge review and acceptance of CoSA 

Administrative Directives that include Data Security and Use of Technology. 

Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures 
to ensure all staff comply with this procedure and receive training on safeguarding 
FERPA,HIPAA, PHI, PII and IDEA Part B and C data. 

 
Performance Standards: 
1302.101(b)(4) 



  

 

 

DHS Early Head Start Program 
Policy 

 

 

PDM 19 

SUBJECT Management of Program Data 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 4/23/18 

Policy Council 
Approval: 1/22/19 

Policy Council 
Revision: 5/23/23 

Governing Body 
Approval: 2/28/19 

Governing Body 
Revision: 6/15/23 

PAGE: 1 of 3 
 

Policy: 
The Head Start Program, including Early Head Start, must establish an internal procedure 
for proper management of program data for the City of San Antonio Department of 
Human Services Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). 

 
Procedure: 
Implementation of technical policies and procedures for electronic information systems 
that maintain electronic Personal Identifiable Information (PII), Protected Health 
Information (PHI), and Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C to 
allow access only to those persons or software programs that have been granted access 
rights. 

 
All DHS Head Start staff, regardless of position, share the responsibility to safeguard 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), PHI, PII, and the IDEA Part B and C related data and 
information from unauthorized access, acquisition, or disclosure. Staff that share PHI, PII 
and IDEA Part B and C information electronically must ensure the receiving entity is an 
authorized recipient of the specific data being delivered. 

 
• Only computers and/or devices configured by the Information 

Technology (IT) Department for use on the CoSA network or Education 
Service Provider network are authorized for the storage or transport of 
PHI, PII and/or IDEA Part B and C data. 

• Staff may utilize a program issued device to access systems to view 
and maintain PHI, PII, and IDEA Part B and C files. 

• Staff ensures the environment in which they are working is secure 
and only authorized persons are within viewing distance of the 
authorized user’s screen and staff should use a privacy screen for all 
monitors and laptop screens. 



  

• Disclosure of PII and/or PHI, and/or IDEA Part B and C to a contractor is 
authorized but ONLY when an enforceable Business Associate 
Agreement (BAA) is in place. 

• Personal devices shall not be used to store or transmit unencrypted 
protected data. 

• Any removable media or storage devices used to transfer PHI, PII, and/or 
IDEA Part B and C data must be encrypted. 

• All devices (e.g., laptops and phones) must have auto-lock enabled with a maximum 
timeout of 15 minutes. Staff are encouraged to lock their workstations manually when 
leaving their desk (Windows key + L or CTRL+ALT+DEL).  

• If any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data is transmitted via email, the email must 
be encrypted. 

• To ensure data protection, confidentiality, and to safeguard PHI, PII, and adhere to 
HIPAA, FERPA, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Part B and C 
data, program staff should utilize a child or parent/guardian’s ChildPlus ID and initials.   

• Hard copies (i.e., paper) of any PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data must be kept 
secured in a lockable file cabinet or other secured storage. 

• In the event that PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data, either hard copy or electronic, 
are transported between locations, staff must take all precautions to ensure the 
materials remain secure and must remain in the presence of staff at all times. 

• Staff should not request PHI, PII, and/or IDEA Part B and C data via text or email. Staff 
may request parents/guardians to provide documents that contain this information via 
the secure ChildPlus Request Document feature.   

 

 
Facsimiles 
Any documents received via facsimile, either telefax or online, that contain PHI, PII 
and/or IDEA Part B and C data shall be uploaded or scanned into appropriate software 
(i.e., ChildPlus) as soon as possible. Any electronic copies of the facsimile should be 
saved to the user’s desktop; once the upload is completed the file should be deleted and 
the deletion confirmed. Any hardcopies of the facsimile must be stored in a secure 
location or destroyed.Any hardcopies of the documents sent via facsimile, either telefax 
or online, that contain PHI, PII and/or IDEA Part B and C data shall be either stored in a 
secure location or destroyed. 

 
 

All DHS Head Start staff must successfully complete the following trainings: 
 

• CoSA Security Awareness Training 
• HIPAA Training 



  

Completion of these trainings are documented and maintained by the City of San 
Antonio Human Resources Department and/or the Training and Technical Assistance 
Team. 

All DHS Head Start staff t review and acknowledge review and acceptance of CoSA 

Administrative Directives that include Data Security and Use of Technology. 

Education Service Providers and contractors must develop and implement procedures 
to ensure all staff comply with this procedure and receive training on safeguarding 
FERPA,HIPAA, PHI, PII and IDEA Part B and C data. 

 
Performance Standards: 
1302.101(b)(4) 



 

 

 
DHS Early Head Start 

Program Policy 

 

 

PDM 21 

SUBJECT Responsibility of fees related to injuries 

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 05/2024 

Policy Council 
Approval:  

Policy Council 
Revision:  

Governing 
Body 
Approval:  

Governing 
Body Revision:  

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

 

The City of San Antonio is not responsible to pay medical bills, including ambulance fees, related to an 
injury sustained by a child, or their parent/guardian, enrolled in the City of San Antonio Department of 
Human Services Head Start Program (DHS Head Start). The City of San Antonio is a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas and subject to the Texas Tort Claims Act (Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem. Code, 
Section 101.001, et. seq.), with limited liability.  

Service Providers must ensure information related to liability and injuries sustained while on site or 
participating in services are available to parents/guardians with a child or children enrolled in the 
program. If a parent/guardian with a child enrolled in the DHS Head Start Program has a claim against the 
City of San Antonio, they may submit the claim to the Office of Risk Management at 
https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration  

If a City of San Antonio Staff Member sustains an injury during work hours, regardless of location of the 
accident, they must contact their supervisor, submit an accident report, and follow the requirements 
outlined in Administrative Directive 4.84. 

Any staff member employed by the Service Provider must follow the established school district and 
childcare center policies and procedures related to accidents and injuries.  

Reference:  
Texas Torts Claims Act, City of San Antonio Administrative Directive 4.84; City of San Antonio Risk 
Management 
 

https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration
https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration
https://www.sanantonio.gov/RiskManagement/Claims-Administration


 

 

 
DHS Early Head Start 

Program Policy 

 

 

PDM 22 

SUBJECT Head Start Program Services  

REFERENCE Program Design and Management 

EFFECTIVE 05/2024 

Policy Council 
Approval:  

Policy Council 
Revision:  

Governing 
Body 
Approval:  

Governing 
Body Revision:  

PAGE: 1 of 1 
 
Policy: 

Each program year, the City of San Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start Program 
(DHS Head Start) provides a minimum of 1,020 hours of planned class operations for the Head 
Start (HS) Prekindergarten Program,  1,380 hours of planned class operations for the Early Head 
Start (EHS) center-based program, and a 10-hour day for 240 days of planned class operations 
for the Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership (EHS-CCP) program. 

DHS Head Start program hours vary by site and are set and approved at the beginning of the 
program year as part of the Education Service Provider’s Program Design.   
 
All DHS Head Start requirements, including staff-student ratio, must be met during the 
designated Head Start service hours. 

 

Performance Standard(s): 
1302.21 



Review of Head Start and 
Early Head Start (EHS) 

Program Wellness 
Services



2/2022 

Wellness Services

Requirements 

The Office of Head Start requires programs to support a program-wide culture that promotes children’s mental health, 
social and emotional well-being and provide overall high-quality health, oral health, mental health, and nutrition 
services.  Services must be developmentally, culturally, and linguistically appropriate and will support each child’s 
growth and school readiness.  

OHS requires programs to collaborate with parents/guardians as partners in the health and well-being of their children 
in a linguistically and culturally appropriate manner and communicate with parents/guardians about their child’s 
health needs and development concerns in a timely and effective manner. 

In addition, OHS also requires programs to make mental health and wellness information available to staff regarding 
health issues that may affect their job performance and must provide regularly scheduled opportunities to learn about 
mental health, wellness and health. 

Wellness Services 

The City of San Antonio Department of Human Services Head Start Program uses a tiered approach to provide 
wellness education and services to children, families, and staff at the following levels: 

Tier Description Focus 

Foundation Effective Workforce 
Training and supports to staff to promote staff 
wellness so they are better equipped to interact with 
children and familiar in healthier and more positive 
ways 

Tier I Promotion – Nurturing Responsive 
Relationships and High-Quality Support 
Environments 

Focus on positive and nurturing relationships 
between staff, children and parents 

Tier II Prevention – Targeted Social Emotional 
Supports 

Parent and Teacher education to promote positive 
social-emotional development of identified children 

Tier III Intensive Intervention Responding to children, family members and staff in 
need of intensive interventions by providing 
consultation and referrals for direct services 

The Head Start Program provides wellness services by offering family support services to all Head Start families. As 
more specific and intensive needs are identified, Head Start utilizes trained and licensed social workers and graduate 
level social workers/mental health workers. As needs are identified by staff with specialized training in social work, 
mental health and trauma informed care, families are provided targeted case management support, psychoeducation, 
and linkages to community resources to support and address those needs. In addition, wellness resources offered by 
the ISD partners, such as case management and therapy are also utilized to support family wellness issues.   

The Early Head Start Program provides wellness services in collaboration with our wellness contractor, Family Services 
Association (FSA).  Referrals will be submitted to FSA for families, children, and staff in need of intervention. Wellness 
support and consultation services will be provided by a qualified licensed mental health professional who has 
experience in working with infants and toddlers and their caregivers.    

All Head Start staff receive the benefit of extensive ongoing training in wellness support such as trauma informed care, 
stress management, mental health first aid, compassion fatigue and other relevant topics to assist them in establishing 
better work/life balance and in supporting and assisting Head Start families. 



 

Review of Head Start, Early
Head Start (EHS), and Early

Head Start-Child Care
Partnership (EHS-CCP) Fiscal

Report



 

EHS/Head Start



 

EHS/HS Fiscal Reports GY 23-24 as of March 31, 2024
BUDGET BY CATEGORY

TOTAL BUDGET
$5,550,916

YTD BUDGET
$5,550,916

YTD ACTUAL
$5,569,863

Variance
($18,947)

Var %
-0.3%PERSONNEL

FRINGE $2,257,367

$24,048

$2,257,367

$24,048

$2,194,690

$14,614

$62,677

$9,434

2.8%

TRAVEL 39.2%

SUPPLIES $154,188
$0

$154,188
$0

$212,325
$0

($58,137)
$0

-37.7%
0.0%EQUIPMENT

CONTRACTUAL $22,053,358 $21,958,656 $19,220,646 $2,738,010 12.5%
COSA
Edgewood
San Antonio ISD
SAMH
FACILITIES/CONSTRUCTION

$380,148
$6,837,218

$14,562,252
$273,740

$0

$380,148
$6,837,218

$14,467,550
$273,740

$0

$259,699
$6,586,411.14

$12,113,259
$261,276

$120,449
$250,807

$2,354,291
$12,464

$0

31.7%
3.7%

16.3%
4.6%
0.0%$0

OTHER $703,359
$30,743,236

$7,067,383
$37,810,619

$703,359
$30,648,534

$6,827,649
$37,476,183

$502,103
$27,714,241

$6,397,783
$34,112,024

$201,256
$2,934,293

$429,866

28.6%
9.6%
6.3%
9.0%

TOTAL FEDERAL BUDGET
Non Federal/In Kind
TOTAL BUDGET* $3,364,158

Variance Explanations:

Personnel Salaries
Fringe Benefits 43.7k Net savings. COSA will be reallocating cost these savings to offset any overages.

$9.4 Travel fell under budget. COSA will be reallocating cost savings to offset any overages.Travel

($58.1k) Over budget due to technology purchases in June 2023 and large purchases in January 2024 from Halo/Big Star/Gateway.
Overage to be cleared out upon grant closeout.Supplies

Contractual
COSA $120k Savings reflected and will be used to offset any overages.

$251k - Final invoice processed in April business in the amount of $174,287.67 will reflect in next month PC report. Savings primarily
related to program vacancies on the Early Head Start grant.EISD

$2.35m - January invoice ($1,720,128.41), Final invoice ($554,389.39), and supplemental invoice ($49,991.13) totaling
$2,324,508.93 are pending payment and are expected to be approved in April business and will reflect in next month PC Report.SAISD

SAMH $12.5k Pending response from SAMHD. They were instructed on 3/19/24 to submit a Final invoice for a Zero amount or for the
remaining budget of $12k. Savings will be used to offset any overages if final invoice is for Zero amount.

Other $201k Budget revision processed and now reflects surplus. Savings will be used to offset any overages.

Scheduled to meet 20% match requirement.Non Federal/In Kind

TRACKED COSTS TOTAL BUDGET
$5,671,593

YTD ALLOWED
$5,116,804

YTD ACTUAL
$1,638,689Administrative Cost

(may not exceed 15% of Actual Expenditure)
TRACKED COSTS

HS Training and Technical Assistance**
EHS Training and Technical Assistance**

TOTAL BUDGET
$277,322

YTD BUDGET
$277,322

$45,632

YTD ACTUAL
$159,043

$17,513

VARIANCE
$118,279

$28,119

%
42.65%
61.62%$45,632

**Earmarked Costs - $11,193 T&TA allocated to Edgewood ISD and $32,311 T&TA allocated to San Antonio ISD.

04/18/2024



 

EHS/HS Fiscal Reports GY 24-25 as of March 31, 2024
BUDGET BY CATEGORY

TOTAL BUDGET
$5,751,350

YTD BUDGET
$928,804

YTD ACTUAL
$909,170

Variance
$19,634

Var %
2.1%PERSONNEL

FRINGE $2,414,921

$14,806

$372,282

$1,500

$363,513

$866

$8,769

$634

2.4%

TRAVEL 42.3%

SUPPLIES $77,982
$0

$10,049
$0

$401
$0

$9,648
$0

96.0%
0.0%EQUIPMENT

CONTRACTUAL $22,059,731 $8,149 $249 $7,900 96.9%
COSA
Edgewood
San Antonio ISD
SAMH
FACILITIES/CONSTRUCTION

$295,444
$6,801,445

$14,689,102
$273,740

$0

$8,149
$0

$249
$0

$7,900
$0

96.9%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

OTHER $424,446
$30,743,236

$7,685,809
$38,429,045

$88,935
$1,409,719

$46,134

$131,277
$1,405,476

$2,834

($42,343)
$4,243

$43,300
$47,543

-47.6%
0.3%

93.9%
3.3%

TOTAL FEDERAL BUDGET
Non Federal/In Kind
TOTAL BUDGET* $1,455,853 $1,408,310

Variance Explanations:
Personnel Salaries
Fringe Benefits

Travel $634 Additional Travel charges occuring in April that will balance category.

No Office Supplies and few Commodities expenses in February-March. Supplies category expenses typically begin being expensed in
later months of grant year.Supplies

Contractual
$7.9k Expenses in Fees to Professional Contr. have started in April, will be reflected in next report. $49k currently encumbered.

EISD

SAISD

SAMH

($42.3k) Annual ChildPlus subscription paid in March, cost is per child equaling $81k. Additionally, March monthly invoice for Selrico
cleaning services was received early, typically paid month after services received. Category expected to balance in coming months.Other

Non Federal/In Kind

TRACKED COSTS TOTAL BUDGET
$5,764,357

YTD ALLOWED
$211,247

YTD ACTUAL
$121,877Administrative Cost

(may not exceed 15% of Actual Expenditure)
TRACKED COSTS

HS Training and Technical Assistance**
EHS Training and Technical Assistance**

TOTAL BUDGET
$272,742

YTD BUDGET
$29,922

YTD ACTUAL
$11,040

$316

VARIANCE
$18,882

$4,082

%
63.10%
92.82%$50,212 $4,398

04/18/2024



 

Early Head Start/Head Start GY 2024-2025

GRANT SUMMARY TOTAL YEAR TO DATE

BUDGET Budget Actual Variance $ Variance %
0.00%

Encumbrance
Description GL $ - $ 21,443,774
Regular Salaries 5101010

5101070
5,751,350.00 $928,803.86 $902,291.79 $

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

26,512.07
(6,878.10)
19,633.97

200.00

2.85%
0.00%
2.11%
8.00%
3.66%

16.91%
0.00%
2.44%
1.55%
2.36%

42.27%
42.27%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-
Retiree Payout Sal
Personnel Services
Language Skill Pay

$6,878.10
909,169.89

$2,300.00
$67,726.23

$672.78

-
5,751,350.00

31,800.00
928,803.86

$2,500.00
$70,298.16

$809.70

-
5101050
5103005
5103010
5103035
5105010
5170040

-
FICA & Medicare Exp
Life Insurance

451,549.00
5,903.00

2,571.93
136.92

-
-

Pers Leave Buy Back
Retirement Exp
Civln Actv Healthcr
Fringe Benefits
Travel-Official

119,453.00
821,051.00
985,165.00

2,414,921.00
14,806.00

- -
$138,888.84
$159,785.60

372,282.30
$1,500.00

1,500.00

$135,498.60
$157,315.29

363,512.90
$865.91

3,390.24
2,470.31
8,769.40

634.09

-
-
-

5207010 -
-Travel-Official 14,806.00 865.91 634.09

Fees to Prof Contr. 5201040
5202020
5202040
5202040
5202040
5202020
6102100
5202020
5202020
5202040

51,835.00
200,105.00

21,534,051.00
6,801,445.00

14,689,102.00
79,271.00

$8,149.32
$12,820.75

$1,500.00

$249.40 $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

7,899.92 96.94%
80.50%

100.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

48,959.77
83,282.92

21,278,028.00
Contractual Services $2,500.00 10,320.75
Contractual - Subrecipients 1,500.00
EISD
SAISD
UIW

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

SAMH
Direct
TTA

273,740.00
44,616.00
66,000.00

TTA 43,504.00
Direct - EHS
TTA - EHS

5202020
5202020

7,718.00
2,500.00

-
-

- $
$

-
-

0.00%
0.00%

$
$

-
-

Contractual 22,059,731.00
30,930.00
29,401.00
12,651.00

2,500.00

22,470.07
5,818.34
4,010.50

220.00

2,749.40 $
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

19,720.67
5,818.34
3,609.76

220.00
-

87.76%
100.00%
90.01%

100.00%
0.00%

$
$
$

21,410,270.69
23.21Office Supplies 5302010

5304080
5501000
5501055
5501065

Other Commodities
Cap<5000 - Comp Equ.
Cap<5000 - M&E Other
Cap<5000 - Furn &Fix
Supplies

400.74 108.76

2,500.00 - 0.00%
77,982.00
48,798.00
12,700.00
46,259.00

1,000.00

10,048.84 400.74
$5,252.17
$2,714.40
$1,892.90

1,636.77

9,648.10
1,547.83

(2,714.40)
2,415.10
(986.77)

-

96.01%
22.76%
0.00%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

131.97
Education - Classes
Adv and Publications
Binding & Printing
Subs to Publications
Transportation Fees
Maint & Rep - Cmrcl
Maint - Buildings

5201025
5203040
5203060
5203070
5203090
5204020
5204050
5204060
5204090
5205010
5205020
5208530
5301010
5301020
5304010
5403040
5403510
5403545
5407032
5203080

$6,800.00 -
2,405.00

$4,308.00
650.00

56.06%
-151.81%

0.00%

-
-

8,500.00 -
450.00 - 0.00% -

16,781.00
125,134.00

2,000.00

$2,920.00
$9,135.00

200.00

$308.04 2,611.96
(23,265.00)

200.00
-

89.45%
-254.68%
100.00%

0.00%

3,676.56
Cleaning Services
Maint.- Repair Auto
Mail and Parcel Post
Rental Office Equip.
Alarm and Sec. Serv.
M&R MaterialBldg/Imp
M&R Parts Automotive
Food

$32,400.00 23,716.80
-

1,030.00 -
12,264.00

2,400.00
- 0.00% -
- 0.00% -

$- -
200.00

- - 0.00% -
1,500.00

17,500.00
29,500.00
15,000.00

2,200.00

200.00
(440.63)
201.84

(1,828.21)
307.84
577.89

(21,169.96)

100.00%
-62.95%

3.82%

-
700.00 1,140.63

5,080.16
4,560.05

3,573.23
Cell Phone Services
Wireless Data Comm.
Motor Fuel and Lub.
DW Other

5,282.00
2,731.84

307.84

-
-
-
-
-

-66.92%
100.00%
96.32%

-38.42%
4,000.00

77,430.00
600.00

55,100.00
22.11

76,269.96Subs - Comp. Serv

Other 424,446.00
182,100.00

32,897.00
3,636.00

88,934.68
$30,695.84

$5,482.83
$606.02

131,277.19 $
$
$
$

(42,342.51) -47.61%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

$ 33,371.59
In Kind Salaries
In Kind Gas & Electricity
In Kind Water & Sewer

6501010
6502154
6502157

-
-
-

$ -

In Kind Social Security
In Kind Life Insurance
In Kind - Flex Benefit
In Kind TMRS

6503005
6503010
6504030
6505010

13,930.00
182.00

$2,321.66
$30.34

$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-

16,654.00
25,330.00

$2,775.66
$4,221.66

In Kind Other Contrc 6602025 7,411,080.00 2,834.00 $ (2,834.00) 0.00% $ -

In Kind
Total

7,685,809.00
38,429,045.00

46,134.01 2,834.00 $ 43,300.01
59,363.73

93.86%
4.04%

$
$

-
1,470,173.76 1,410,810.03 21,443,774

Page 3 of 3



 

Procurement Card Transaction Log
For the Period Ending: March 31, 2024

Date IO GL Vendor Purpose Amount

No P-Card Expenses

Monthly Total: $0.00

IO GL Account Name Amount

Year to Date Total: $0.00



 

Early Head Start-Child Care
Partnership (EHS-CCP)



 

Early Head Start - CCP Fiscal Reports GY 23-24 as of March 31, 2024

BUDGET BY CATEGORY
TOTAL BUDGET

862,458
YTD BUDGET

587,326
YTD ACTUAL

576,645
Var ($)

10,681
Var ( %)

1.8%PERSONNEL

FRINGE

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

338,244

9,330

-

235,984

3,000

-

237,822

2,519

-

$ (1,838)

481

-0.8%

16.0%

0.0%

TRAVEL $

$

$

EQUIPMENT

SUPPLIES

-

78,971 31,775 3,417 28,358 89.2%

CONTRACTUAL
COSA

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,017,337
78,294

359,082
430,898
574,531
251,358
143,633
179,541

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,313,047
20,343

239,392
287,264
383,024
167,576

95,752
119,696

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,314,761
25,187

239,392
284,463
383,024
167,246

95,752
119,696

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(1,714) -0.1%
-23.8%
0.0%
1.0%
0.0%
0.2%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

(4,844)
Blessed Sacrament
Ella Austin

-
2,801

Healy Murphy
Inman Christian
Seton Home
YWCA

-
330
-
-
-Support Services

OTHER
TOTAL FED BUDGET

$ 57,181 $ 32,455 $ 28,274 $ 4,181 12.9%
1.8%$ 3,363,521 $ 2,203,587 $ 2,163,438 $ 40,149

NON FED SHARE/IN KIND

TOTAL BUDGET
$ 775,585 $ 133,052 $ 202,218 $ (69,166) -52.0%

-1.2%$ 4,139,106 $ 2,336,639 $ 2,365,656 $ (29,017)

Variance Explanations:
Personnel Services and Fringe Benefits $8.8K Budget adjustment completed in February to offset higher than expected Personnel costs. Positive variance

expected to balance throughout grant year. We are monitoring and will adjust accordingly.

Travel $481 Travel expense expected in upcoming months.
Supplies $28K Lower expenses than expected for Office Supplies and Other Commodities. Surplus savings as a placeholder, will be

used to offset any negative balances.
Contractual
-COSA
Other

($4.8K) Teachstone invoices (CLASS) for January greater than expected ($7.4K). Less expenses than expected for UIW
year to date and Q1 deliverables disallowance for Inman ($330) and Ella Austin ($2.8K).
$4.1 Cleaning expense allocation pending for Dec-Feb, lower expenses than anticipated for Food, Binding & Printing, and
Education - Classes.

Non Federal Share/In Kind ($69.1K) Recognized more In-Kind to date than projected; Scheduled to meet our 20% match requirement sooner than
expected.

TRACKED COSTS YTD ALLOWED YTD ACTUAL
Administrative Cost $354,848 $79,421

*may not exceed 15% of Actual Expenditure; If all Federal and Nonfederal spent the maximum allowable is $ 564,510
TRACKED COSTS TOTAL BUDGET YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUAL

$24,154
Var

$8,728
%

26.5%Training and Technical Assistance $64,800 $32,882
(Earmarked costs)

04/18/2024



 

EHS-CCP 2023-2024
Grant Summary

TOTAL
BUDGET

YEAR TO DATE
Variance $Budget Actual Variance %

-1.24%
1.82%

Encumbrance
Description GL $

$
$
$
$

4,139,106.00 $
$
$
$
$

2,336,638.83 $
$
$
$
$

2,365,656.33 $
$
$
$
$

(29,017.50) $
$
$
$
$

545,044.82
Regular Salaries
Temporary Salaries
Overtime Salaries
Retiree Payout Sal

5101010
5101015
5101020
5101070

862,458.00 587,325.54 576,644.59 10,680.95 -
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Personnel Services
Language Skill Pay
FICA & Medicare Exp
Temp FICA & Medicare
Life Insurance

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

862,458.00
1,480.00

64,627.00
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

587,325.54
994.00

44,610.00
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

576,644.59
1,150.00

43,621.09
-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

10,680.95
(156.00)
988.91

-

1.82%
-15.69%
2.22%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

5101050
5103005
5103007
5103010
5103035
5105010
5170040

0.00%
617.00 473.29 415.32 57.97 12.25%

0.00%Pers Leave Buy Back
Retirement Exp
Civln Actv Healthcr

17,144.00
118,584.00
135,792.00

17,144.00
80,936.00
91,827.00

17,144.15
81,880.89
93,610.98

(0.15)
(944.89)

(1,783.98)
-1.17%
-1.94%

Fringe Benefits
Travel-Official

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

338,244.00
9,330.00
9,330.00

30,794.00
1,986,543.00

359,082.00
430,898.00
574,531.00
251,358.00
143,633.00
179,541.00
47,500.00

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

235,984.29
3,000.00
3,000.00

15,843.00
1,297,204.00

239,392.00
287,264.00
383,024.00
167,576.00
95,752.00

119,696.00
4,500.00

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

237,822.43
2,519.29
2,519.29

23,818.27
1,290,942.31

239,392.00
284,463.16
383,024.00
167,246.09
95,752.00

119,696.00
1,369.06

-

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(1,838.14)
480.71
480.71

(7,975.27)
6,261.69

-

-0.78%
16.02%
16.02%
-50.34%
0.48%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-
5207010 -

Travel-Official -
Fees to Prof Contr.
Contractual Services

5201040
5202020

17,965.85
516,963.69

BSA 5202020 0.00% -
Ella Austin 5202020

Healy 5202020
Inman 5202020

Seton Home 5202020
YWCA 5202020
Direct 5202020

TTA 5202020

2,800.84
-

0.98% -
0.00% -

329.91
-

0.20% -
0.00% -

- 0.00% -
3,130.94

-
0.00%
0.00%

-
-

Contractual 2,017,337.00
18,263.00
2,160.00

38,390.00
17,254.00
2,904.00

78,971.00
11,439.00

-

1,313,047.00
8,239.00
1,000.00

19,036.00
3,000.00

500.00

1,314,760.58
668.70

(1,713.58)
7,570.30
1,000.00

16,287.75
3,000.00

500.00
28,358.05
2,546.17
(188.81)

2,972.60
(7.34)

-0.13%
91.88%
100.00%
85.56%
100.00%
100.00%
89.25%
40.42%
0.00%

534,929.54
Office Supplies 5302010

5304075
5304080
5501000
5501065

11.04
Computer Software
Other Commodities
Cap<5000 - Comp Equ.
Cap<5000 - Furn &Fix
Supplies

- -
2,748.25

-
390.29

-
--

31,775.00
6,299.00

-

3,416.95
3,752.83

188.81

401.33
Education - Classes
Adv and Publications
Binding & Printing
Subs to Publications
Transportation Fees
Maint - Buildings
Cleaning Services
Rental Office Equip.
Alarm and Sec. Serv.
Food

5201025
5203040
5203060
5203070
5203090
5204050
5204060
5205020
5208530
5304010
5403040
5403510
5404520
5404530
5404540
5407032
5203080

-
-

7,559.00
-

4,000.00
-

1,027.40
7.34

74.32%
0.00%

-
-

2,000.00
184.00

1,174.00
165.00

1,678.30
1,066.14
3,706.68

2.03

(504.30)
(901.14)

3,820.32
897.97

36.00

-42.96%
-546.15%
50.75%
99.77%
100.00%
80.92%
-63.59%
8.25%

-
368.52

12,063.00
1,586.00

72.00

7,527.00
900.00

8,683.20
-

36.00 - -
6,000.00
2,530.00
1,500.00
2,100.00
4,936.00

433.00

3,045.00
1,575.00

875.00

580.86 2,464.14
(1,001.60)

72.16

662.23
Cell Phone Services
Wireless Data Comm.
Software Licenses
Gas and Electricity
Water and Sewer
DW Other

2,576.60
802.84

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- - - 0.00%
3,193.00

269.00
1,787.92

208.02
1,405.08

60.98
44.01%
22.67%
-78.38%

-629.95%
1,085.00
2,590.00

1,085.00
1,208.00

1,935.37
8,817.76

(850.37)
(7,609.76)Subs - Comp. Serv

Other $
$
$
$

57,181.00
775,585.00
775,585.00

4,139,106.00

$
$
$
$

32,455.00
133,052.00
133,052.00

2,336,638.83

$
$
$
$

28,274.43
202,218.06
202,218.06

2,365,656.33

$
$
$
$

4,180.57
(69,166.06)
(69,166.06)
(29,017.50)

12.88%
-51.98%
-51.98%
-1.24%

$
$
$
$

9,713.95
In Kind Other Contrc
In Kind

6602025 -
-

Total 545,044.82



 

Procurement Card Transaction Log
YTD For the Period Ending: March 31, 2024

Date IO GL Vendor Purpose Amount
Purchase of bananas for the Family Music

Festival
3/31/2024 138000003522 5304010 HEB $

$

$

92.80

National Child Passenger Safety
Certification Training

National Child Passenger Safety
Certification Training

3/31/2024

3/31/2024

138000003524

138000003524

5201025

5201025

Safe Kids Worldwide

Safe Kids Worldwide

95.00

95.00

Monthly Total: $282.80

IO GL GL Name Amount
138000003522
138000003524

5201040
5207010

Fees to Prof Contr.
Travel-Official

$
$

18.00
1,405.44

Year to Date Total: $1,706.24



Review of Head Start, EHS, 
and EHS-CCP Monthly 

Program Report



Head Start



Indicators EISD SAISD Program Total

Funded Enrollment 777 2,243 3,020

End of Month as reported to the Office of Head Start 692 2,124 2,816

YTD Enrollment 835 2,474 3,309

Enrollment Turnover 1.4% 0.9% 0.0%

Number of Days to Fill a Vacancy 15 15 15

Waiting List 0 0 0

Income Eligible <100% 36% 25% 28%

Over Income 101-130% 9% 8% 8%

Over Income 131% + 9% 8% 8%

Foster 1% 1% 1%

Homeless 5% 14% 12%

Public Assistance (TANF, SSI, SNAP) 40% 44% 43%

Average Daily Attendance 90% 92% 91%

Percent (#) of enrolled children with a disability (funded enrollment) 16.99% 16.63% 16.72%

Meals Served 49,776 49,776

Snacks Served 24,528 24,528

Special Diets 51 130 181

1st Home Visit                  (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-10/6/23; SAISD-10/14/23) 98% 88% 90%

2nd Home Visit                 (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-03/28/2024; SAISD-05/24/24) 93% 1% 24%

1st Parent Conference     (Benchmark Due Date: 12/15/2023) 94% 88% 89%

2nd Parent Conference    (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-05/24/24; SAISD-02/23/24) 1% 85% 63%

Family Assessments BOY           (Benchmark Due Date: 12/15/2023) 96% 97% 97%

Family Assessments EOY           (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-5/30/24; SAISD-5/30/24) 35% 18% 22%

Family Meeting Home Visits     (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-8/7/23; SAISD-8/15/23) 99% 99% 99%

Mental health consultation was provided (by a mental health professional) 47 75 122

Mental health consultation was provided (by a licensed mental health professional) 0 9 9

ASQ - 3 Developmental  (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-9/20/23; SAISD-9/28/23)                         98% 91% 93%

ASQ - SE Behavioral        (Benchmark Due Date: EISD-9/20/23; SAISD-9/28/23)                  98% 91% 93%

Nutrition Assessment 99% 99% 99%

TB Questionnaire 99% 99% 99%

Hearing Screening 97% 99% 98%

Vision Screening 97% 98% 98%

Blood Pressure 95% 98% 98%

Growth Assessment 97% 98% 98%

Lead Test 45% 72% 65%

Physical Exams 97% 92% 93%

Dental Exams 93% 92% 92%

Mental Health Services - Complete

Education Screenings - Complete

Health Screenings - Complete

Head Start                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

Monthly Report to Policy Council                                                                                                                                                                           

March 2024

Enrollment

Disability Enrollment

Food Reports 

Education Services - Complete

Family Engagement Services - Complete



Early Head Start



Indicators

Center 

Based

Home 

Based TOTAL

Funded Enrollment 132 12 144

End of Month as reported to the Office of Head Start 116 12 128

YTD Enrollment 123 13 136

Enrollment Turnover 8% 8% 8%

Number of Days to fill a vacancy 5 0 5

Waiting List 95 0 95

Income Eligible <100% 33% 15% 32%

Over Income 101-130% 5% 15% 6%

Over Income 131% + 2% 8% 2%

Foster 1% 0% 1%

Homeless 18% 8% 17%

Public Assistance 41% 54% 43%

Average Daily Attendance (TANF, SSI, SNAP) 83% N/A 83%

Percent (#) of enrolled children with a disability 10% 0% 9%

Meals Served 2,473 0 2,473

Snacks Served 1113 0 1,113

Special Diets 11 0 11

1st Home Visit                 (Benchmark Due Date: 09/25/2023) 88% 0% 88%

2nd Home Visit                (Benchmark Due Date: 03/25/2024) 80% 0% 80%

1st Parent Conference    (Benchmark Due Date: 1/5/2024) 81% 0% 81%

2nd Parent Conference   (Benchmark Due Date: 05/31/2024) 0% 0% 0%

Family Assessments BOY  (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 11/30/23; Home-based 10/13/23) 92% 88% 94%

Family Assessments EOY (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 5/31/24); Home-based 5/31/24 0% 0% 0%

Family Meeting Home Visit 100% 100% 100%

Mental health Consultation (provided by licensed mental health professional) 127 0 127

Wellness Services Support (Referral/ Resource) 11 0 11

ASQ - 3 Developmental (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 9/20/23; Home-based 8/30/23) 95% 90% 95%

ASQ - SE2 Behavioral (Benchmark Due Date: Center-based 9/20/23; Home-based 8/30/23) 95% 90% 95%

Health History 100% 100% 100%

Nutrition Assessment 100% 100% 100%

TB Questionnaire 100% 100% 100%

Hearing Screening 99% 100% 99%

Vision Screening 100% 100% 100%

Hemoglobin Test 98% 100% 98%

Lead Test 47% 10% 44%

Well-Child Exams (90-day requirement) 96% 80% 95%

Well-Child Exams 58% 10% 54%

Dental Exams 75% 30% 72%

Mental Health Services- Complete 

Education Screenings- Complete

Health Screenings- Complete

             Early Head Start Monthly Report                                                                                                                                                        

March 2024

Enrollment

Disability Enrollment 

Food Reports

Education Services- Complete

Family Engagement Services- Complete



Early Head Start-Child Care 
Partnership (EHS-CCP)



Indicators BSA 

Ella 

Austin

Healy 

Murphy Inman

Seton 

Home YWCA TOTAL

Funded Enrollment 40 48 64 28 16 20 216

End of Month as reported to the Office of Head Start 40 48 64 28 16 20 216

YTD Enrollment 46 53 70 35 26 21 251

Enrollment Turnover 13% 9% 9% 20% 38% 5% 14%

Number of Days to fill a vacancy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Waiting List 69 73 125 78 0 85 430

Income Eligible <100% 26% 26% 19% 17% 12% 19% 21%

Over Income 101-130% 4% 8% 6% 3% 0% 0% 4%

Over Income 131% + 2% 0% 4% 0% 0% 10% 2%

Foster 0% 0% 6% 0% 0% 5% 2%

Homeless 28% 15% 21% 37% 77% 24% 29%

Public Assistance (TANF, SSI, SNAP) 39% 51% 44% 43% 12% 43% 41%

Average Daily Attendance 92% 90% 85% 79% 85% 90% 87%

Percent (#) of enrolled children with a disability 15% 2% 6% 7% 0% 10% 7%

Meals Served 1,378 1,243 1,501 864 259 608 5,853

Snacks Served 689 629 732 397 118 304 2,869

Special Diets 9 7 20 6 6 5 53

1st Home Visit                  (Benchmark Due Date: 9/25/2023) 97% 100% 100% 100% 87% 100% 99%

2nd Home Visit                  (Benchmark Due Date: 3/25/2024) 87% 96% 97% 86% 62% 100% 91%

1st Parent Conference      (Benchmark Due Date: 1/5/2024) 92% 98% 100% 93% 62% 100% 94%

2nd Parent Conference     (Benchmark Due Date: 6/21/2024) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Family Assessments BOY (Benchmark Due Date: 11/30/2023) 94% 100% 100% 88% 87% 100% 96%

Family Assessments EOY (Benchmark Due Date: 5/31/2024) 0%

Family Meeting Home Visit 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Mental health consultation was provided (by a mental health professional) 14 9 7 28 1 10 69

Mental health consultation was provided (by a licensed mental health professional) 74 28 48 75 40 26 291

ASQ - 3 Developmental 97% 100% 100% 100% 87% 100% 99%

ASQ - SE2 Behavioral 97% 100% 100% 100% 87% 100% 99%

Health History 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Nutrition Assessment 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

TB Questionnaire 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Hearing Screening 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Vision Screening 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Hemoglobin Test 98% 98% 100% 96% 94% 90% 97%

Lead Test 80% 77% 67% 75% 75% 80% 75%

Well-Child Exams (90-day requirement) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Well-Child Exams 83% 46% 73% 82% 94% 75% 72%

Dental Exams 88% 90% 94% 86% 56% 100% 88%

Mental Health Services- Complete 

Education Screenings- Complete

Health Screenings- Complete

Early Head Start-Child Care Partnership                                                                                                                                                               

Monthly Report to Policy Council                                                                                                                                                                         

March 2024

                                                                                      Enrollment

Disability Enrollment 

Food Reports

Education Services- Complete

Family Engagement Services- Complete



Review of Head Start 
Quality Assurance Report



   
 

   
 

 

Quality Assurance Report  
March 2024 

 
Conducted (Project is either still in progress OR has ended, but report has not yet been 
officially submitted to providers): 

• Governance Review 
• Health Review 
• Metro Health Review 
• Family & Community Support Review 

 
Completed (Project ended and report was officially submitted to providers):  

• Safe Environments Review #1 – Facilities 
• Education Review 

 
 

Safe Environments Review #1 - Facilities: 
 

Area of Non-Compliance 
There was one area of non-compliance 
noted during this review: 

• Several fire inspections were 
expired and/or still pending a re-
inspection (white tagged).  

 
 

 
 

Area of Concern 

There were several areas of concern noted 
during this review: 

• Expired First Aid Burn Cream in a 
first aid kit.  

• First aid kits not being checked 
monthly. 

• Fire extinguishers in Head Start 
pod, and gym were expired. 

• Carbon Monoxide detector checks 
were not conducted monthly. 

• Unflushed toilets.   
Follow-Up Activities: 

The CoSA Quality Assurance (QA) Team will work with the District Staff to ensure that 
these issues are addressed and corrected. A Corrective Action Plan (CAP) was issued for 
the area of non-compliance. The QA Team will ensure this plan not only addresses the 
action steps taken to correct said findings, but also addresses how District Staff will prevent 



   
 

   
 

any future re-occurrences. The CoSA and/or Content Teams are available if training and/or 
technical assistance is needed.   
 

 
 

 
Education Review: 

 
Area of Non-Compliance 

 
None 

 
 
 
 
 

Areas of Concern 

There were several areas of concern noted 
during this review: 

• There was no evidence that the 1st 
Parent/Teacher Conference was 
conducted. 

• The 1st Parent/Teacher Conference 
form was not scanned into 
ChildPlus. 

• Child’s caregiver was not invited by 
teacher to participate in Ready 
Rosie. 

• The 1st MDS/MTSS event dates 
were not entered into ChildPlus 
according to the ChildPlus Data 
Entry Guide. 

• Teacher was not able to describe 
how he/she used Ready Rosie. 

• Teacher was not able to describe 
how parents/family members have 
opportunities to volunteer in the 
classroom.  

Follow-Up Activities: 
The CoSA QA Team will follow-up with District Staff to ensure that these corrections are 
made. The CoSA QA and/or Content Teams are available if any training and/or technical 
assistance is needed.   
 

 
 
For more detailed information:  
Cassandra.Bentley@sanantonio.gov  
 

mailto:Cassandra.Bentley@sanantonio.gov


Review of EHS and EHS-
CCP Quality Assurance 

Report



   

 

   

 

 

Quality Assurance Report March 2024 
 
 

Conducted: Review March 1, 2024 – March 21, 2024 
 

• Education Child File Review and Onsite Visits – Pending COSA Review 
 
 
Conducted:  Unannounced Safe Environment Visits March 19 – 21, 2024 
 

• Healy Murphy Child Development Center 

• Seton Home Child Care Center 

• YWCA Olga Madrid  
 
 
 

 
Education Child File Review and Onsite Visits 

Area of non-compliance  
 

Pending COSA Review 
 

 

Areas of concern  
 

Pending COSA Review 
 

 

Follow-up Activities 

Pending COSA Review 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 



   

 

   

 

 
 
 

Unannounced Safe Environments Visits 

Area of non-compliance  
 
             None Noted 

 
 

Areas of concern  

• Sleeping arrangements for infants did not 
follow safety practices as recommended by 
the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) 

• Cleaning supplies were not in a locked 
cabinet 

• Vinyl equipment on the playground is 
peeling – seen as choking hazard 

• Small rubber bands found on the floor 

• Items placed on top of the diaper changing 
table 

 

Follow-up Activities 

Correction due date is scheduled for April 8, 2024. 
 

 
 
 
 
For more detailed information:  
 Wanda.McMillan@sanantonio.gov  or  Dianne.mendez@sanantonio.gov  
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Wanda.McMillan@sanantonio.gov
mailto:Dianne.mendez@sanantonio.gov

	01. Meeting Minutes
	02. Approval of Head Start and Early Head Start (EHS) Policy Updates
	03. Review of Head Start & Early Head Start (EHS) Program Wellness Services
	04. Review of Head Start, EHS & EHS-CCP Fiscal Report
	05. Review of Head Start, EHS & EHS-CCP Monthly Program Report
	06. Review of Head Start Quality Assurance Report
	07. Review of EHS & EHS-CCP Quality Assurance Report

